
 

 

 
 
Ref: RCIIND/BSE/AnnualReport/2022-23      01st September, 2022 
 
 
To 
The Department of Corporate Services – Listing 
BSE Limited  
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street,  
Mumbai – 400 001 
 

SCRIP CODE: 537254 
                                    
Subject: Submission of Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22 alongwith the Notice of 
31st Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) 

Dear Sir/Ma’am, 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 (1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation, 2015, as amended, please find enclosed herewith the Annual Report for the financial year 
2020-21 alongwith the Notice of 31st Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company to be held on Friday, the 
30th day of September, 2022 a 10.30 a.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/other Audio Visual means 
(“OAVM”). 

The Notice of the AGM and Annual Report inter alia, containing the Financial Statements and other Statutory Reports 
for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been sent electronically to all the members whose e-mail IDs are registered 
with Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company and the Depository Participant(s). The Notice of the AGM 
and the Annual Report for the financial year 2021-22 will also be available on the Company’s website at 
www.rciind.com.  

The Notice of 31st AGM and the Annual Report has also been uploaded on the website of the Company at 
www.rciind.com. 

This is for your information and record.  

Thanking You, 

Yours faithfully 
For RCI Industries and Technologies Limited  
 
 
 
 
 
Priya Rastogi 
Company Secretary 
M. No.: 18636 
 
Encl.: A/a 
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FROM THE CHAIRMAN DESK, 
 
I trust, you are all well and safe. 

God is kind, who gave us strength to fight worst Pandemic of the decade.  

As you are aware that your company is undergoing serious challenges due to unwarranted and 
reasons beyond control. The management is facing all challenges and trying its level best to revive 
back the company.  

Need is the basis of invention. Due to financial stress the company with the support of all staff has 
successfully produced Stainless Steel and special alloy steel foils in the same plant and also reached 
to a stage wherein with infusion of a very small capex can produce other special steel foils in bulk. 
But due to present stress will undertake the same after revival of the company. I am further pleased 
to inform that the company has got very good orders from the Ordnance factory both on sale basis 
and on job work, which will help the company to revive back.   

As you are already aware that Company’s borrowings were declared as Non-Performing Assets 
(NPA) by the Bankers due to non-payment of borrowed and interest amount during the previous 
year. However, the management is giving its all efforts and is confident about the revival of the 
Company and has already submitted the restructuring plan to the lenders for the revival. 

I wish to inform you that, we have concentrated our efforts to keep the Company as a going concern 
and also took the necessary steps to rebuild the Company.  

Before I conclude, I would like to thank the entire RCI team who, once again, have braved through 
this tough time. My thanks to our other stakeholders, who continue to be our partners in growth. I 
also place on record my sincere appreciation to all our shareholders for their continued confidence 
and support. 

 

Warm regards 

Sd/- 

Rajeev Gupta 

Chairman & Managing Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

RCI INDUSTRIES & TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 
Regd. Office: UNIT NO. 421, PEARL OMAXE TOWER, NETAJI SUBHASH PLACE, 

PITAMPURA, NEW DELHI-110034 
Tel: +91 11 41681828, +91 11 27371334 

Web: www.rciind.com, Email: compliance@rciind.com 
CIN: L74900DL1992PLC047055 

 

NOTICE 

31ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 31ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE 
MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY “RCI INDUSTRIES & TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED” 
WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY, THE 30TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2022 AT 10:30 A.M. 
THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (“VC”)/ OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS 
(“OAVM”)  TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES. THE VENUE OF THE 
MEETING SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE 
COMPANY AT UNIT NO. 421, 4TH FLOOR, PEARL OMAXE, NETAJI SUBHASH PLACE, 
PITAMPURA, DELHI-110034 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company- on Standalone & 
Consolidated basis, for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 including Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the Financial Year ended on that date and the 
Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajeev Gupta (DIN 00503196), who retires by rotation at this 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3.  APPROVAL OF REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO COST AUDITORS OF THE 
COMPANY 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit & Auditor) Rules, 2014, M/s 
Cheena & Associates  appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as the cost Auditors to 
conduct audit of cost accounting records maintained by the Company for Product(s)/Services 
Covered under MCA Cost Audit Order(s) for the year ending on 31-03-2022 at a remuneration of Rs. 
1,25,000/- (Rupee One Lakh Twenty-Five Thousand Only) plus GST and out-of-pocket expenses as 
recommended by the Audit Committee of Directors of the Company, subject to ratification of the 



 
 

remuneration of the said Cost Auditors by the Shareholders of the Company at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting of the Company.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to do all acts, deeds and things as may be deemed necessary or expedient in connection 
therewith and incidental thereto.” 
 
 

 
 

                              
     By Order of the Board 

         For RCI Industries & Technologies Limited 
          

Sd/- 
 
 

 

                                                                                                  Mrs. Priya Rastogi 
     Company Secretary & Compliance Officer                                                                                                                                     

         M. No. A18636 
Date: 05.07.2022 
Place: New Delhi 
 
 
Registered Office 
Unit No. 421, 4th Floor Pearl Omaxe Tower,  
Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, New Delhi-110034 
CIN L74900DL1992PLC047055 
E-mail: compliance@rciind.com 
Website: www.rciind.com 
 
 

 

IMPORTANT NOTES:                    

1. In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the 31st Annual General Meeting (AGM) will be 
held on 30th Day of September, 2022 at 10:30 A.M. IST through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other 
Audio Visual Means (OAVM), in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ (MCA) General Circular no. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 
2020, MCA General Circular no. 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020, MCA General Circular No. 
20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020, MCA General Circular No. 22/2020 dated 15th June, 2020, MCA 
General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th January 2021 MCA General Circular No. 19/2021, dated 
8th December, 2021, MCA General Circular No. 21/2021, dated 14th December, 2021 & General 
Circular No. 2/2022, dated 5th May, 2022 (hereinafter referred to as MCA Circulars) and in 
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and SEBI Circular dated 12th 
May, 2020, 15th January, 2021 and 13th May, 2022 (hereinafter referred to as SEBI Circulars) and 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. the 31st AGM of the 
Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM Facility, which does not require physical presence 
of members at a common venue. The Members can attend and participate in the AGM through 
VC/OAVM only. Further, the Company will be availing remote e-voting/ e-voting system for casting 
vote during AGM from National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). 
 
 



 
 

2. In terms of the MCA Circulars since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, 
there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of appointment of 
proxies by Members under Section 105 of the Act will not be available for the 31st AGM. However, 
in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Act, representatives of the Members may be 
appointed for the purpose of voting through remote e-Voting, for participation in the 31st AGM 
through VC/OAVM Facility only. Therefore, attendance slip and route map are not annexed to this 
notice. 
 

3. The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) 
setting out material facts concerning the business under Item Nos. 3 of the Notice, is annexed hereto. 
The relevant details, pursuant to Regulation 26(4) and 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard 
on General Meetings issued by the Institute of company Secretaries of India in respect of Director 
seeking appointment/re-appointment at this AGM are also annexed. 
 

4. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The 
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members 
on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or 
more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on 
account of first come first served basis. 
 

5. Institutional /Corporate member are encouraged to attend the 31st AGM through VC/OA VM mode 
and vote electronically. Corporate Members intending to appoint their authorized representatives 
pursuant to Sections 112 and 113 of the Act, as the case may be, to attend the AGM through VC/OA 
VM or to vote through remote e-Voting are requested to send a certified copy of the Board 
Resolution to the Scrutinizer by e-mail at pcsgauravshah@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.co.in & compliance@rciind.com. 
 

6. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for 
the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

7. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 
the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be 
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 
authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting system as well 
as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 
 

8. Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 42 of SEBI (Listing obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Register of Members and the Share Transfer 
books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 24th September, 2022 to Friday, 30th 
September, 2022 (both days inclusive).  
 

9. The Company has fixed the record date of Saturday, 27th August, 2022 for determining the 
entitlement of shareholders to receive Annual Report of the Financial Year 2021-22. 
 

10. The Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) for its Share Registry Work (Physical and 
Electronic) is Bigshares Services Private Limited, having its office at having its office at E4/8, Block 



 
 

E 4, Jhandewalan Extension, Jhandewalan, New Delhi, Delhi 110055, E-mail Id: 
bssdelhi@bigshareonline.com. Members are requested to make all correspondence in connection 
with shares held by them by addressing letters directly to Bigshares Services Private Limited, 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the company quoting their Folio number. 
 

11. Members are requested to notify immediately about any change in their postal address/ e-mail 
address/ bank details to their Depository Participant (DP) in respect of their shareholding in Demat 
mode and in respect of their physical shareholding to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent viz. M/s Bigshare Services Private Ltd having its office at E4/8, Block E 4, Jhandewalan 
Extension, Jhandewalan, New Delhi, Delhi 110055. Shareholders holding Equity Shares of the 
Company in physical form may register their E-Mail address with the Registrar and Share Transfer 
agent of the Company to receive all communications by the Company including Annual Report and 
Notice of Meeting(s) by E-Mail, by sending appropriate communication on 
bssdelhi@bigshareonline.com with Folio number, Name of the shareholder, scanned copy of the 
share certificate (Front and Back), PAN( Self attested scanned copy of PAN Card), AADHAR ( Self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) for registering email address. 
 

12. Members who have not registered / updated their email addresses with Bigshares Services Private 
Limited, are requested to do so for receiving all future communications from company including 
Annual Reports, Notices, Circulars etc. electronically. 
 

13. Members wishing to claim dividends that remain unclaimed are requested to correspond with the 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents as mentioned above, or the Company Secretary, at the 
Company’s registered office. Members are requested to note that are not claimed within seven years 
from the date of transfer to the Company’s unpaid Dividend Account, will, as Section 124 of the Act, 
be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). Shares on which dividend 
remains unclaimed for seven consecutive years will be transferred to the IEPF, as per Section 124 of 
the Act, and applicable rules. 
 

14. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in 
the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote. 
 

15. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, members holding shares in physical form may 
file nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent. In 
respect of shares held in electronic/Demat form, the nomination form may be filed with the 
respective Depository Participant. 
 

16. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 
electronic form are, accordingly, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with 
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can 
submit their PAN details to the Company. 
 

17. In all correspondences with the Company, members are requested to quote their account/folio 
numbers and in case their shares are held in the dematerialized form, they must quote their DP ID 
and Client ID No(s). Members who hold shares in physical form are advised to convert their 
shareholding in dematerialized form with any depository participant. 
 

18. Details pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, in respect of the Director seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting, 
forms integral part of the notice. The director has furnished the requisite declaration for his re-
appointment, confirming that he meets the criteria for re-appointment. 
 

19. In terms of Section 152 of the Act, Mr. Rajeev Gupta, Director of the Company, are liable to retire 
by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 



 
 

 
20. Members desirous of obtaining any information/ clarification concerning the Financial Statements 

for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022, of the Company, may send their queries in writing 
atleast seven days before the Annual General Meeting to the Company Secretary at the registered 
office of the Company or at e-mail id: compliance@rciind.com. 
 

21. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the 
Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also 
advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should 
be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified. 
 

22. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are 
requested to register the same with their Depository Participant in case the shares are held by them in 
electronic form and with Company’s RTA in case the shares are held by them in physical form. This 
may be considered as an advance opportunity to the members to register their e-mail address and 
changes therein as required under Rule 18 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time. 
 

23. PROCEDURE FOR INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS: 
 

(i) All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Explanatory Statements, shall be 
available for inspection through electronic  mode, basis the request being sent on  
compliance@rciind.com. 
 

(ii) The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under 
Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which 
Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available 
for inspection at the Annual General Meeting. 
 

24. AN ELECTRONIC DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT AND PROCESS FOR 
REGISTRATION OF EMAIL ID FOR OBTAINING COPY OF ELECTRONIC ANNUAL 
REPORT: 
 

(i) In accordance with, the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 read with General 
Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021 issued by MCA and Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th January, 2021 issued by SEBI, owing to the 
difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of the financial statements (including Report 
of Board of Directors, Auditor’s report or other documents required to be attached therewith), such 
statements including the Notice of AGM are being sent in electronic mode to Members whose e-mail 
address is registered with the Company or the Depository Participant(s). 
 

(ii) Members who do not have registered their E-mail ID and/or bank details are required to register their 
email addresses and/or bank details, in respect of electronic holdings with their concerned 
Depository Participants and in respect of physical holdings, with the Company’s Share Transfer 
Agent i.e. M/s Bigshare Services Private Ltd having its office at E4/8, Block E 4, Jhandewalan 
Extension, Jhandewalan, New Delhi, Delhi 110055 E-mail: bssdelhi@bigshareonline.com by 
following due procedure, which is as under: 
 

In case, 
Physical 
Holding 

Send a duly signed request letter to the RTA of the Company i.e. Bigshare 
Services Private Ltd (Unit: RCI Industries and Technologies Limited), 
E4/8, Block E 4, Jhandewalan Extension, Jhandewalan, New Delhi, Delhi 
110055 or scanned copy on e-mail at bssdelhi@bigshareonline.com and 
provide the following details/documents for registering email address: 
a) Folio No., 
b) Name of shareholder, 



 
 

c) Email ID, 
d) Copy of PAN card (self attested), 
e) Copy of Aadhar (self attested) 
f) Copy of share certificate (front and back) 
Following additional details/documents need to be provided in case of 
updating Bank Account detail: 
a) Name and Branch of the Bank in which you wish to receive the 
dividend, 
b) the Bank Account type, 
c) Bank Account Number, 
d) MICR Code Number, and 
e) IFSC Code 
f) Copy of the cancelled cheque bearing the name of the first shareholder 

In case, 
Demat 
Holding 

Please contact your Depository Participant (DP) and register your email 
address and bank account details in your demat account, as per the 
process advised by your DP. 

 
The Notice of AGM along with Annual Report for the financial year 2021-22, is available on the 
website of the Company at www.rciind.com. on the website of Stock Exchanges where shares of the 
Company are listed i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website of NSDL at 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 
 

25. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: - 
 

(i) In compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as may be amended from time to time, Regulation 44 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and the Secretarial 
Standard on General Meeting issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India, the Company is 
pleased to provide E-Voting facility to the Members of the Company to exercise their right to vote at 
the 31st Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means (remote e-voting) in respect of the 
resolutions contained in this notice and the business may be transacted through e-voting services 
provided by NSDL.  
 
The facility for voting, through electronic voting system on the resolution(s) shall also be made 
available at the AGM and members attending the meeting through VC/OAVM who have not already 
cast their vote on the resolution(s) by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right to vote on 
such resolution(s) at the meeting. 
 

I. The Members who have already cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM would be 
entitled to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to vote on such 
resolution(s) at the meeting. 
 

II. The Remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, 27th September, 2022 at 09.00 A.M. and ends on 
Thursday, 29th September, 2022 5.00 P.M..The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL 
for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial 
Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Friday, 23rd September, 2022 may cast their vote 
electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up 
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Friday, 23rd September, 2022. 
 

III. The cut-off date for determining the eligibility of shareholders to exercise remote E-Voting rights 
and attendance at 31st Annual General Meeting (AGM) is Friday, 23rd September, 2022. A person, 
whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners 



 
 

maintained by the Depositories as on cut-off date, shall be entitled to avail the facility of E-Voting or 
voting at the meeting through ballot paper. A person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date 
should treat this Notice for information purpose only. 
 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: - 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, 27th September, 2022 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 
Thursday, 29th September, 2022 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 
NSDL for voting thereafter. 
 
E-voting Particulars: 
 

EVEN (Remote e-voting 
event Number) 

USER ID PASSWORD/PIN 

121228   
 
Members are requested to carefully read the instruction for E-voting before casting their vote. 
  
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-
Voting facility. 
 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, 
please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web 
browser by typing the following URL: 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or 
on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, 
click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which 
is available under “IDeAS” section. A new screen will 
open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. 
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. 



 
 

Click on options available against company name or e-
Voting service provider - NSDL and you will be re-
directed to NSDL e-Voting website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting 
& voting during the meeting. 

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click at  
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirect Reg.jsp  
 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you 
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can 
see e-Voting page. Click on options available against 
company name or e-Voting service provider - NSDL and 
you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.  

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can 
login through their user id and password. Option will be 
made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest 
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also 
able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of 
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to 
cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/ 
Registration/EasiRegistration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link 
in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 



 
 

authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile 
& Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective 
ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress. 

Individual 
Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat 
mode) login through 
their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  Once login, you will be 
able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting 
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository 
site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click on options available against company 
name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 
990  and  1800 22 44 30 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 or 022-23058542-43 

 

 
B) Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and 
a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 



 
 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on  e-Voting and you can proceed to 
Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 
 

Manner of holding 
shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) 
or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members 
who hold shares in 
demat account with 
NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members 
who hold shares in 
demat account with 
CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members 
holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN 
is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 

login and cast your vote. 
 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 
‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 
change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. 
Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for 
NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares 
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 
those shareholders whose email ids are not registered  
 



 
 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, 
your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes 
on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7.  After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 
on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-voting will open 
 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting 
system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting 
system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which 
you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-
Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual 
meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 
7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, 
to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to pcsgauravshah@gmail.com and to the company by e-mail to 
compliance@rciind.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, 



 
 

you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset 

Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  
3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a 
request to Mr. Abhishek Mishra, Manager NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in  

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories 
for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of 
PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
compliance@rciind.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID 
or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 
PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) to compliance@rciind.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 
(A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring 
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to 
access e-Voting facility. 
 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM 
ARE AS UNDER: - 
 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
remote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred 
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, 
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-
Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

5. Members, who are present in the meeting through video conferencing facility and have not cast their 
vote on the resolutions through remote e-voting, shall be allowed to vote through e-voting system 
during the meeting.  

6. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend and 
participate in the AGM but they shall not be entitled to cast their vote again at the AGM. 
 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGHVC/OAVM 
ARE AS UNDER: 
 



 
 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL 
e-Voting system. Members may access the same at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under 
shareholders/members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will 
be available in shareholder/members login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please 
note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the 
User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. Further members can also use the OTP based login 
for logging into the e-Voting system of NSDL. 
 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting. 
 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate 
any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

 
5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions 

in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number at compliance@rciind.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 
 
 

25. PROCEDURE TO RAISE QUESTIONS / SEEK CLARIFICATIONS WITH RESPECT TO 
ANNUAL REPORT: 
 
Members desiring any information/clarification on the accounts or any matter to be placed at the 
AGM are requested to write to the Company at compliance@rciind.com on or before 23rd 
September, 2022 to enable the management to keep information ready at the AGM. Members who 
would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves as a 
speaker by sending their request from their registered email address mentioning their name, demat 
account number/folio no., mobile number at compliance@rciind.com on or before 23rd September, 
2022. Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 
their views/ask questions during the AGM. The other members desiring to seek 
information/clarification during the AGM may ask through the chat box facility provided by NSDL. 
Queries that remain unanswered at the AGM will be appropriately responded by the Company at the 
earliest post the conclusion of the AGM. 
 
The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as 
appropriate for smooth conduct of the AGM. 
 
 

26. DECLARATION OF RESULTS 
 

I. Mr. Gaurav Shah, a Practicing Company Secretary (Certificate of Practice No. 21952, Membership 
No. FCS 46647), Proprietor, M/s. Gaurav Shah & Associates has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to 
scrutinize the e-voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 
 

II. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will first count the votes cast at the 
meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two 
witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than 48 hours of the 
conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or 



 
 

against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the 
same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 
 

III. The results shall be declared not later than forty-eight hours from conclusion of the meeting by 
posting the same on the website of the Company at www.rciind.com and Stock Exchange website at 
www.bseindia.com.  
 

IV. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolution shall be deemed to be passed on the 
date of the Meeting i.e. 30th September, 2022. 
 

 
 

27.  Members who need assistance before or during the AGM with use of technology, can contact NSDL 
on evoting@nsdl.co.in or use Toll free no.: 1800-222-990or Contact Mr. Abhishek Mishra, Manager, 
NSDL at the designated email ID: abhishekm@nsdl.co.inor at telephone number +91-8510810068; 
or Contact Mr. Aman Goyal, Assistant Manager, NSDL at the designated email ID: 
amang@nsdl.co.inor Mr. Narender Dev, Assistant Manager at the designated email ID: 
narendrad@nsdl.co.inor at telephone number +91-8376913413. 

 
                            By Order of the Board 

         For RCI Industries & Technologies Limited 
          

Sd/- 
 
 

                                                                                                  Mrs Priya Rastogi 
     Company Secretary & Compliance Officer                                                                                       

        M. No. A18636 
Date: 5thJuly, 2022 
Place: New Delhi  
 
Registered Office 
Unit No. 421, 4th Floor Pearl Omaxe Tower,  
Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, New Delhi-110034 
CIN L74900DL1992PLC047055 
E-mail: compliance@rciind.com 
Website: www.rciind.com 

 

 

 

  



 
 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF COMPANIES ACT, 
2013 

ITEM NO. 3: APPROVAL OF REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO COST AUDITORS OF 
THE COMPANY 

The Board of Directors of the company on the recommendation of the Audit Committee approved 
the appointment and remuneration of M/s Cheena & Associates, Cost Accountants, to conduct the 
audit of the cost records of the company for the financial year ended 31 March, 2022. In terms of the 
provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a) (ii) of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is to be ratified by 
the Members of the company. Accordingly, the Members are requested to ratify the remuneration 
payable to the Cost Auditors as set out in the Resolution for the aforesaid services to be rendered by 
them. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the company and their relatives, are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said Resolution.  

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for 
approval by the Members. 

 

By Order of the Board 
         For RCI Industries & Technologies Limited 

          
           Sd/- 

 
 

                                                                                                  Mrs. Priya Rastogi 
     Company Secretary & Compliance Officer                                                                                                                                

        M. No. A18636 
 

Date: 5thJuly, 2022 
Place: New Delhi  
 
Registered Office 
Unit No. 421, 4th Floor Pearl Omaxe Tower,  
Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, New Delhi-110034 
CIN L74900DL1992PLC047055 
E-mail: compliance@rciind.com 
Website: www.rciind.com 
  



 
 

REQUISITE INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF DIRECTOR SEEKING APPOINTMENT 
OR RE-APPOINTMENT IN THEFORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IN 
PURSUANCE TO THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATRIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD-2: 

 

  

Name of the Director Mr. Rajeev Gupta 
DIN 00503196 
Date of Birth 10-10-1967 
Type of appointment Liable to retire by rotation 
Date of Appointment/ Re-appointment 17.01.1992/30.09.2020 
Areas of Specialization Leadership, legal, regulatory, 

information security and 
compliance requirement of the 
industries 

Qualifications Graduate 
No. of Shares Held in the Company 6296880 (40.17%) 
Justification for appointment Promoter Director 
Chairman/member of the Committee of the 
Board of Directors of this Company 

Member: 
1. Audit Committee 
2. Stakeholder Relationship 

Committee 
3. Corporate Social Responsibility 

 
Chairman/member of the Committee of the 
Board of Directors of other listed Companies or 
holding Directorship in any other listed company 

Nil 

Relation with Key Managerial Personnel and 
Directors 

Husband of Mrs. Mamta Gupta 



 
 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
TO, 
THE MEMBERS,  
  
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 31st (Thirty First) Annual Report on the business and 
operations of the Company together with the audited accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 
2022. 

1.FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The financial performance of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 is 
summarized below: - 

(Amount in Rs. Lacs) 
Particulars Standalone Consolidated 

 For the 
year 

ended 
31.03.2022 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

For the 
year 

ended 
31.03.2022 

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021 

Revenue from Operations 5968.13 6880.22 5968.13 7079.95 
Other Income 22.67 63.68 22.67 75.70 
Total Income 5990.80 6943.90 5990.80 7155.65 
Total Expenses 13223.69 16168.87 13180.22 23021.34 
Profit/(Loss) before 
extraordinary items and 
tax 

(7232.89) (9224.97) (7189.42) (15865.69) 

Less: Tax Expenses: 
Current Tax  
Deferred Tax 
Minimum Alternate Tax 

 
- 

(23.10) 
- 

 
- 

(170.37) 
- 

 
- 

(23.10) 
- 

 
- 

(170.37) 
- 

Profit/(Loss) after yax (7209.79) (9054.60) (7166.31) (15695.33) 
Total other comprehensive 
income 

                                   
19.90  

                                   
11.19  

                                  
28.79  

                              
(183.26) 

Total comprehensive loss 
for the year 

                          
(7,189.89) 

                          
(9,043.41) 

                          
(7,137.53) 

                 
(15,878.58) 

Earning per share  (45.99) (57.76) (45.71) (100.12) 
          
 

2.FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 
Standalone 
 
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, based on standalone financial statements, the 
Company earned total revenue amounting to Rs. 5,990.80 Lakhs as Compared to Rs. 6943.90 Lakhs 
in the previous year. Loss after tax stood at Rs. 7209.79 Lakhs as against Loss after tax of Rs. 
9054.60 in the previous year. 
 
Consolidated 
 
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, the Company’s Consolidated revenue for the year 
ended 31st March, 2022 was Rs. 5990.80 Lakhs compared to Rs. 7,155.65 Lakhs for the period ended 
31st March, 2021. The Consolidated Net Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2022 Rs. 7166.31 Lakhs 



 
 

compared to Net loss of Rs. 15695.32 Lakhs for the period 31st March, 2021. The Consolidated total 
Comprehensive loss for the year ended 31st March, 2022 was Rs. 7137.53 Lakhs compared to total 
comprehensive loss of Rs. 15,878.58 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2021. 
 
Your Company has incurred heavy losses amounting to Rs. 71.37 Crores during the year 31st March, 
2022. Further, the Company borrowings are being declared as Non-Performing assets (NPA) by the 
lenders due to non-payment of interest and principal borrowed, on dues dates. 
 

3.SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT 
 
 
The financial year 2021-22 was also affected by the Covid-19 and the 2nd and 3rd waves of the 
pandemic put a lot of pressure on employees as well as on Management. The global economic 
recovery is facing significant headwinds amid new waves of COVID-19 infections, persistent labour 
market challenges, lingering supply-chain challenges and rising inflationary pressures. 
 

Your Company has incurred heavy losses amounting to Rs. 71.37 Crores during the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2022, which is much less than the previous year which was Rs. 158.78 crores 
Further, the net worth of the Company has been fully eroded.  

Further, Company borrowings were declared as Non-Performing Assets (NPA) by the Bankers due 
to non-payment of borrowed and interest amount during the previous year. However, the 
management is confident of reviving the Company and is in discussion with bank restructuring of 
loan.  

Further your company has faced severe liquidity crunch for a variety of reasons during the previous 
years which also affect the current financial year 2021-22. But the company is exploring all possible 
ways to revive back the company, which includes undertaking job work of Steels including Stainless 
Steel etc. 

Your company has appointed Ernest and Young (EY) for exploring possibility of investors/financers 
to fund the stress situation.  

Your Company is also taking several measures and steps to cop up from such situation with the help 
of its bankers by restructuring and revival plan with our lenders.  

4.RESERVES & SURPLUS 
 
The Company’s reserve & surplus for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 is Rs. (25380.16) 
Lakhs as compared to the previous year it was Rs. (18242.60) Lakhs. 
 

5.DIVIDEND 
 
In view of losses incurred during the period under review, the Board of Directors does not 
recommend any dividend on the equity shares for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. 
 

6.TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 
 
As per Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor Education and Protection Fund 
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 as amended from time to time, all 
the shares in respect to which dividend has remained unclaimed/unpaid for a period of seven 
Consecutive year or more are required to transfer in the name of IEPF, but the company is not 
required to transfer the said amount to the IEPF established by the Central Government for during 
the year under the review. 
 



 
 

7.SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES 
 
The Company has following Subsidiary Companies and Associate Companies as on March 31, 2022: 
 
Sl. 
No. 

Name & Address of the Company Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate 

% of 
Shares 

held 

Applicable 
Section 

1. RCI World Trade Link DMCC, Dubai 
(U.A.E.) 

Subsidiary 100 2(87) 

2. Ace Matrix Solutions Private Limited  Associate 22 2(6) 
3. Metalrod Private Limited  Associate 34.27 2(6) 

 
 

During the Financial year ended on March 31, 2022 the Company has two Associate Company i.e 
Ace Matrix Solutions Private Limited & Metalrod Private Limited. 
 
In accordance with proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Companies Act 2013, a statement 
containing salient features of the financial statements of the Company’s Subsidiaries/Joint 
Ventures/associates and the report on their performance and financial position in Form AOC-1 is 
annexed to the financial statements and forms part of the Annual Report, which covers the financial 
position of the associate Company. 
 
In accordance with third proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report 
of your Company, containing therein its audited standalone and the consolidated financial statements 
has been placed on the website of the Company. 
 

8.CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Accounting Standards and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The audited consolidated financial 
statements together with Auditors’ Report form part of the Annual Report. 
 
The company has not consolidated the financial statement of the associates companies (viz. Metalrod 
Private Limited and Ace Matrix Solutions Private Limited) as the applicable accounting standard for 
the time being in force, exempts the consolidation of financial statement of such associates because 
the investment in shares of associates was acquired/ made as stock in trade and the intention of such 
investment was to dispose of the same in near future and further Section 129 (3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with first proviso to Rule 6 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 which states that in 
case of a company covered under sub section (3) of section 129 which is not required to prepare 
consolidated financial statements under Accounting Standards, it shall be sufficient if the company 
complies with provision of Consolidated Financial Statements provided in Schedule III of the Act 
and the company has duly complied with provision of Schedule III of the Act by disclosing the name 
of associates not consolidated and reason thereof as mentioned above. 
 
Further, a separate statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries 
and Associates of the Company in the prescribed form AOC-1 has been disclosed in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 

9.SHARE CAPITAL 
 
During the Financial Year 2021-22, there was no change in the share capital of the Company. 
 

10.LISTING 
 



 
 

Your Company’s fully paid-up equity shares continue to be listed and traded on BSE Limited 
(‘BSE’). The said Stock Exchange has nation-wide trading terminals and hence facilitates the 
Shareholders/Investors of the Company in trading the Shares. The Company has paid the annual 
listing fee for the Financial Year 2022-23 to the said Stock Exchange.  
 

11.DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES  
 
The Company has admitted its Equity Shares to the depository system of National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for 
dematerialization of shares.  
 
As on 31st March, 2022, 1,56,73,614 Equity Shares representing 99.98% of the Equity Share Capital 
of the Company are in dematerialized form.  
 
The Equity Shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form as mandated by 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The International Securities Identification 
Number (ISIN) allotted to the Company with respect to its Equity Shares is INE140B01014. 
 

12.DEPOSITORIES 
 
Your Company has arrangements with National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL’) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (‘CDSL’), the Depositories, for facilitating the members to trade 
in the fully paid-up equity shares of the Company in Dematerialized form. The Annual Custody fees 
for the Financial Year 2022-23 has been paid to both the Depositories. 
 

13.COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARD 
 
During the period under the review, your Company has complied with all the provisions of 
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretary of India (“ICSI”) in consultation 
with Central Government which are mandatory to be complied by the Company. 
 

14.MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 
POSITION OF THE COMPANY 
 
There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the 
financial statements relate and the date of this report. 
 

15.CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 
There is no change in the nature of business during the financial year 2022-23. 
 

16.MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms part of Annual Report. 
 

17.EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
 
In terms of the Section 92 (3) of Companies Act, 2013 as amended, the Annual Return of the 
Company is placed on the website of the Company www.rciind.com on the following link:  
https://www.rciind.com/investors/reports-and-presentations/ 
 
 

18.DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 



 
 

 
i. Directors 

 
Mr. Rajeev Gupta (DIN: 00503196) shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting 
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. The Board hereby recommends their re-
appointment for approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.  
 
During the period under the review, your Board comprises of 4 Directors including 2 Independent 
Directors and 1 Woman Director. The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a 
diverse Board in its success. The Board has also adopted the Board Diversity Policy. 
 
The brief profile, pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards-2, of the Directors eligible for 
appointment/ re-appointment forms part of the Notice of Annual General Meeting and Corporate 
Governance Report. 
 
The Company has received necessary declaration from all the Independent Directors under Section 
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as laid 
down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulation. 
 

ii.Key Managerial Personnel 
 
The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) had resigned from the office with effect from 05th October, 2020 
and whose position is still vacant and the company is in process to comply with the same 
requirement. 
 
Mrs. Jyoti Sharma, Former Company Secretary of the Company had resigned w.e.f 28.02.2022 form 
the position of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company, in her place Mrs. Priya 
Rastogi (Membership No. A18636 ) have joined the Company w.e.f 06.05.2022 
 
In compliance with the requirements of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Rajeev Gupta, 
Managing Director and Chairman and Mrs. Priya Rastogi, Company Secretary of the Company are 
the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.  
 

19.NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY 
 
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(e) and Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Policy on 
appointment of Board members including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 
independence of a Director and the Policy on remuneration of Directors, KMP and other employees 
is attached as ‘ANNEXURE-1` to this Report. 
 
It is thereby, affirmed that remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Management Personnel and other 
employees is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
 

20.PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 
As on March 31, 2022, the total numbers of employees on the records of the Company were 119. 
The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, along with 
statement showing names and other particulars of the top 10 employees in terms of remuneration 
drawn is annexed to this report as ‘ANNEXURE-2’. 
 

21.PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND 
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS 
 



 
 

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (LODR), 2015, the 
Board, in consultation with its Nomination & Remuneration Committee, has formulated a framework 
containing, inter-alia, the criteria for performance evaluation of the entire Board of the Company, its 
Committees and Individual Directors, including Independent Directors.  
 
A structured questionnaire has been prepared, covering various aspects of the functioning of the 
Board and its Committee, such as, adequacy of the constitution and composition of the Board and its 
Committees, matters addressed in the Board and Committee meetings, processes followed at the 
meeting, Board`s focus, regulatory compliances and Corporate Governance, etc.  
 
Similarly, for evaluation of Individual Director’s performance, the questionnaire covers various 
aspects like his/ her profile, contribution in Board and Committee meetings, execution and 
performance of specific duties, obligations, regulatory compliances and governance, etc. Board 
members had submitted their response on a scale of 5 (excellent) – 1 (poor) for evaluating the entire 
Board, respective Committees of which they are members and of their peer Board members, 
including Chairman of the Board. The Independent Directors had met separately without the 
presence of Non-Independent Directors and the members of management and discussed, inter-alia, 
the performance of non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole and the performance of the 
Chairman of the Company after taking into consideration the views of executive and Non-Executive 
Directors.  
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also carried out evaluation of every Director`s 
performance. The performance evaluation of all the Independent Directors have been done by the 
entire Board, excluding the Director being evaluated. On the basis of performance evaluation done 
by the Board, it shall be determined whether to extend or continue their term of appointment, 
whenever the respective term expires.  
 
The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
 

22.FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
The Company conducts Familiarization Program for the Independent Directors to enable them to 
familiarize with the Company, its management and its operations so as to gain a clear understanding 
of their roles, rights and responsibilities for the purpose of contributing significantly towards the 
growth of the Company.  They are given full opportunity to interact with senior management 
personnel and are provided with all the documents required and/or sought by them to have a good 
understanding of the Company, its business model and various operations and the industry, it is a 
part.  
 
The Policy on Familiarization Program for Independent Directors is also available on the Company’s 
website www.rciind.com under the weblink https://www.rciind.com/about-us/management-
team/familiarisation-programme-for-independent-directors/ 
 
Further, at the time of appointment of an Independent Director, the Company issues a formal letter of 
appointment outlining their duties and responsibilities as a director. 
 

23. MEETING OF THE BOARD 

 
The Board met 8 times during the Financial Year 2021-22, the details of which are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Report. The intervening gap between 
any two meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing 
Regulations. 
 

24.COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 



 
 

The Company’s Board has the following Committees: 
(i) Audit Committee 
(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
(iii) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
(iv) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
 
Details of the constitution of these Committees, which are in accordance with regulatory 
requirements, have been uploaded on the website of the Company viz. www.rciind.com. A detailed 
note on the Board and its Committees is provided under the Report on Corporate Governance 
section. 
 
(i) Audit Committee 
 
The Board has constituted an Audit Committee, which comprises Mr. Mukesh Kumar Tyagi, 
Chairman (Independent Director), Mr. Rajeev Gupta, Managing Director and Mr. Ritesh Kumar, 
Independent Director as the Members during the period under the review. The Board of Directors 
has accepted all the recommendations of the Audit Committee. 
 

25.SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 
 
Pursuant to the provision of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the company had appointed 
M/s Kiran & Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial 
Audit of the Company for the financial year 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed as 
‘ANNEXURE-3’. 
 
No fraud has been reported by the Secretarial Auditors under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made thereunder. 
 
The Board has re-appointed M/s. Kiran & Associates, Company Secretaries in practice as Secretarial 
Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2022-23. 
 

26.SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 
 
Pursuant to the provision of Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements), 2015 M/s Kiran & Associates, Company Secretaries in practice has undertaken the 
Secretarial Compliance Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22. The Report of the 
Secretarial Compliance Report in prescribed format for the period ended 31st March, 2022 is annexed 
as ‘ANNEXURE-4’ to the Report.  
 

27.CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 
A brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company and the related details 
for the period 2021-22 are set out in “ANNEXURE 5” of this report as per the format prescribed in 
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The Composition of CSR 
committee and other related details are provided in the Corporate Governance section, forming part 
of this Report. The policy is available on the website of the Company (www.rciind.com). 
 

28.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
None of the transactions with related parties fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. All transactions with related parties entered during the year were in the Ordinary Course 
of Business and on Arm’s Length and duly approved by Audit Committee of the company. The 
company has not entered into any transaction of a material nature with any of the related parties 
which are in conflict with the interest of the company. 



 
 

 
However, as required under Companies Act, 2013 the details of related party transactions are 
disclosed in prescribed Form No. AOC – 2 which is attached as ANNEXURE–6. 
 
Also, you may refer to Related Party transactions in Note No 32 of the Standalone Financial 
Statements. 
 

29.CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
Corporate Governance refers to a set of systems, procedures and practices which ensure that the 
company is managed in the best interest of all corporate stakeholders i.e. shareholders, employees, 
suppliers, customers and society in general. Fundamentals of Corporate Governance include 
transparency, accountability and independence. 
 
Your Company views Corporate Governance more as a way of business life than a mere legal 
obligation. The Company has adopted various practices of governance confirming to highest ethical 
and responsible standard of business, globally benchmarked. Strong and effective implementation of 
governance practices in the Company have been rewarded in terms of improved share valuations, 
stakeholder`s confidence, market capitalization, etc. 
 
A certificate from Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of the conditions of 
Corporate Governance, as stipulated under Schedule V of the Listing Regulations is annexed as 
`ANNEXURE-7` and forms part of this Report. 
 

30.AUDITORS 
 
At 27th Annual General Meeting held on Friday, 20th July, 2018, M/s. KRA & Co., Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No: 020266N) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company to hold office from the conclusion of 27th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 
32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2023.  
 
Your Company has received a letter from M/s. KRA & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm 
Registration No: 020266N) to the effect that their appointment, if made, would be under the second 
and third proviso to Section 139 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified 
within the meaning of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4(1) of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 
 
The Audit Report given by M/s. KRA & Co. for the financial year 2021-22, forms part of this 
Annual Report.  The report of Statutory Auditor forming part of this Annual report are with qualified 
opinion and remarks during the period under the review.  
 
Board Comment on Qualified opinion, during the previous year, our company were declared as non-
performing assets (NPA) due to non-payment. However, the management is confident of reviving the 
Company and is in discussion with Bank for restructuring of loan. Company having Government 
orders and in strong prediction to get new Government orders. Still your company is going concern 
and confident about the smooth functioning of the business of the Company. 
 

31.INTERNAL AUDITORS 
 
M/s Kiran & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary performs the duties of internal auditors of 
the Company and their report is reviewed by the audit committee from time to time. 



 
 

COST AUDITOR 

M/s Cheena & Associates (Membership No. 29419) Practicing Cost Accountant have been re-
appointed to audit the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 for conducting 
the audit of the cost records of the Company. 
 

32.RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT REPORT 
 
As per the directive of Securities and Exchange Board of India, M/s Gaurav Shah & Associates, 
Company Secretaries, Rajasthan undertook the Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit on a quarterly 
basis. The purpose of the audit is to reconcile the total number of shares held in National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL), Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and in physical 
form with the respect to admitted, issued and paid-up capital of the Company. 
 

33.CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE 
 
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, there is no change in situation of the Registered 
office of the Company  
 

34.WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM 
 
The Board has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism) to provide opportunity to 
Directors/Employees/Stakeholders of the Company to report concerns about unethical behavior, 
actual or suspected fraud of any Director and/or Employee of the Company or any violation of the 
Code of Conduct.  
 
Further during the year under review, no case was reported under the Vigil Mechanism. 
 

35.PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
 
Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies act, 2013 form part of the notes to the financial statements provided in the Annual 
Report. 
 

36.BORROWINGS AND DEBT SERVICING 
 
The Company borrowings are being declared as Non-Performing Assets (NPA) by the lenders due to 
non-payments of interest and borrowed amount as Company has incurred heavy losses during the 
year ended on 31st March, 2022. 
 

37.PUBLIC DEPOSITS 
 
Your Company has neither invited nor accepted any public deposit under chapter V of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 

38.SEXUAL HARASSMENT  
 
The Company has zero tolerance for Sexual Harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on 
prevention of Sexual Harassment in line with the provisions of ‘The Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013’ and the Rules made thereunder. 
There was no complaint on sexual harassment during the year under review. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
39.SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDER 

No significant or material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which impact 
the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. However, Company has received 
Show Cause Notice from GST Intelligence, Gurugram Zonal Unit during the previous year and the 
matter is in court. 
 

40.DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR 
ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR. 
 
During the FY 2021-22, Union bank of India has approached Insolvency and Bankruptcy court for 
initiating bankruptcy proceeding against the company as per the provision of Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, matter registered on 08-03-2022. 

 
41.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS & OUTGO 
 
Conservation of Energy 
 
Your Company, being a manufacturer, trader and exporter of Ferrous and Non-Ferrous Metal 
products, requires minimal energy consumption and every endeavor is made to ensure optimal use of 
energy, avoid wastages and conserve energy as far as possible. 
 
Technology Absorption 
 
In its endeavor to deliver the best to its customers, clients and business partners, your Company is 
constantly active in harnessing and tapping the latest and best technology in the industry.  
 
Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo 
 
Particulars of Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the financial year is mentioned in the 
financial accounts forming part of the Annual Report. 
 

42.DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
Pursuant to the provisions under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to 
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, the Directors confirm:  
 
a. That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been 
followed and no material departures have been made from the same; 
 
b. That they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently, and made 
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the 
Company for that period;  
 
c. That they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 
d. That they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  
 



 
 

e. That they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and  
 
f. That they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

43.RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM & INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 
 
Your Company has an effective internal control and risk mitigation system, which is constantly 
assessed and strengthened with standard operating procedures (SOPs) and which ensures that all the 
assets of the Company are safeguarded and protected against any loss and that all the transactions are 
properly authorized and recorded. The Company has laid down procedures to inform audit 
committee and board about the risk assessment and mitigation procedures, to ensure that the 
management controls risk through means of a properly defined framework. The internal control 
systems of your Company ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from 
unauthorized use or disposition and those transactions are authorized, recorded and reported 
correctly. 
 
Your Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. Based on internal financial control framework and compliance systems established in the 
Company, the work performed by statutory, internal and secretarial auditors and reviews performed 
by the management and/or relevant Audit and other Committees of the Board, your Board is of the 
opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the 
financial year 2021-22. During the year, no reportable material weakness in the design or operation 
was observed.  
 
Properly documented policies, guidelines and procedures are laid down for this purpose. The internal 
control system has been designed to ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for 
preparing financial and other statements and for maintaining accountability of assets.  
 
The Company also has an Audit Committee, presently comprising of 3 (three) Members i.e. 
professionally qualified Directors, who interact with the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and 
Auditees in dealing with matters within its terms of reference. The Committee inter alia deals with 
accounting matters, financial reporting and internal controls which also periodically reviews the Risk 
Management Process. 
 

44.INSIDER TRADING CODE 
 
In compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘the PIT Regulations’) on prevention of insider trading, your Company had 
instituted a comprehensive Code of Conduct for regulating, monitoring and reporting of trading by 
Insiders. The said Code lays down guidelines, which advise Insiders on the procedures to be 
followed and disclosures to be made in dealing with the shares of the Company and cautions them on 
consequences of non-compliances. 
 
Your Company has further put in place a Code of practices and procedures of fair disclosures of 
unpublished price sensitive information. Both the aforesaid Codes are in line with the PIT 
Regulations. 
 

45.INDUSTRIAL OPERATIONS 
 
The Company maintained healthy, cordial and harmonious industrial relations at all levels. The 
enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of the employees have enabled the Company to remain at the 
leadership position in the industry. It has taken various steps to improve productivity across the 
organization. 



 
 

 
46.INVESTOR RELATIONS  

 
Your Company always endeavours to promptly respond to shareholders’ requests/grievances. Each 
and every issue raised by the shareholders is taken up with utmost priority and every effort is made 
to resolve the same at the earliest. The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board 
periodically reviews the status of the redressal of investors’ grievances. 
 

47.CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
 
Statements in this Report, particularly those which relate to Management Discussion and Analysis, 
describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and expectations, may constitute 
‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations and actual 
results might differ.  
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Dated: 05.07.2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE-1 to the Board’s Report 



 
 

 

POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS (EXCLUDING 
INDEPNDENT DIRECTORS), KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

 

Preliminary 

Director’s appointment is subject to the fulfillment of the following terms & conditions: 

1.  So long as they are Directors of the Company, the number of companies in which they hold office as 
a Director or a chairman or committee member will not exceed the limit stipulated under the Act. 

2. So long as they are Directors of the Company, they will ensure that they do not get disqualified to act 
as a Director pursuant to the provisions of Section 164 of the Act. 

3. They will ensure compliance with other provisions of the Act and the listing Agreement as 
applicable to them as a Director. 

 

Term / Tenure 

Executive Director: 

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing Director/WTD for a term not 
exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the 
expiry of term. 

Non-Executive Directors: 

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Non-Executive Director for a term as it 
may deem fit subject to their retirement and re-appointment as per the applicable provisions of the 
Act. 

Committees 

They will be appointed as Chairman and/or Member on the following Committees of the Board: 

(I) AUDIT COMMITTEE 

(II) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

(III) SHAREHOLDERS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE 

(IV) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

 

Code of Conduct 

They will abide by the Code of Conduct and Ethics applicable to Directors as available on the 
website of the company. 

Performance Evaluation 

The overall effectiveness of the Board shall be measured on the basis of the ratings obtained by each 
Director and accordingly the Board shall decide the Appointments, Re-appointments and Removal of 
the Directors of the Company. 



 
 

The Independent Directors shall take into consideration the following parameters for the purpose of 
evaluating the performance of Board of Directors. The evaluation scale is a simple two-point scale 
i.e. SATISFACTORY OR UNSATISFACTORY. 

Their reappointment or extension of term and their remuneration will be recommended by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board, pursuant to a performance evaluation 
carried out by Independent Directors on the basis of following specific issues and questions: 

1. Attendance, participations in the Meetings and timely inputs on the minutes of the meetings. 
2. Adherence to ethical standards & code of conduct of Company. 
3. Compliance with policies, reporting of frauds, violation etc. and disclosure of interest. 
4. Safeguarding of interest of whistle blowers under vigil mechanism and Safeguard of confidential 
information. 
5. Violation of provisions of the Companies Act 1956 or 2013 by the Directors, if any. 
6. Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company 
management and the Board. 
7. Composition/Constitution of Board of Directors. 
 

Based on the above criteria Board has to be assessed by giving a rating of SATISFATORY OR 
UNSATISFACTORY. 

The process of evaluation shall be done by Independent Directors only. Assistance in the process 
will be provided by a person so authorized by the Board, and for this purpose the person will report 
to the Board. 

Removal 

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules 
and regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in 
writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and 
compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations. 

Retirement 

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of 
the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the 
Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/remuneration or otherwise even 
after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company. 

Remuneration policy for Executive Directors (Whole-time/ Managing Director) and KMP 

a) Fixed pay: 

The Executive Directors and KMP shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved 
by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum 
of perquisites including, employer’s contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club 
fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board/ the Person authorized by the Board on the 
recommendation of the Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central Government, 
wherever required. 

b) Minimum Remuneration: 



 
 

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall 
pay remuneration to its Executive Directors in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the 
Act and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous approval of the Central 
Government. 

c) Provisions for excess remuneration: 

If any Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in 
excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the prior sanction of the Central 
Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is 
refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum 
refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government. 

Remuneration to Non- Executive Directors (excluding Independent Director) 

a) Remuneration / Commission: 

The remuneration / commission shall be fixed as per the slabs and conditions mentioned in the 
Articles of Association of the Company and the Act. 

b) Sitting Fees: 

The Non- Executive Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of 
Board or Committee thereof as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

c) Commission: 

Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit 
not exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of the 
Act. 

The Company aspires to pay performance linked remuneration to its Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees. It will be ensured that the remuneration is determined in such away 
there exists a fine balance between fixed and incentive pay. The Directors of the Company may also 
waive off their remuneration and sitting fees if they deem fit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL / FORMATION OF TERMS & 
CONDITIONS OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Committee has established the following independence review procedures and criteria to 
evaluate the independence of Directors. 

Preliminary 

Independent Director’s appointment is subject to the following terms & conditions: 

1. During their tenure as an Independent Director, they will have to submit a declaration at the 
beginning of every Financial Year under Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013(“Act”) stating 
that they meet the criteria of Independence. 

2. So long as they are Independent Director of the Company, the number of companies in which they 
hold office as a Director or a chairman or committee member will not exceed the limits stipulated 
under the Act and the Listing Agreement. 

3. So long as they are Independent Director of the Company, they will ensure that they do not get 
disqualified to act as a Director pursuant to the provisions of Section 164 of the Act. 

4. They will ensure compliance with other provisions of the Act and the listing Agreement as 
applicable to them as an Independent Director. 

Term 

Their Appointment will be for a term of 5 years and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of 
a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. 

Committees 

They will be appointed as chairman and/or member on the following Committees of the Board: 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

SHAREHOLDERS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE 

 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

 

Code of Conduct and Duties and Responsibilities 

1. They will abide by the Code of Conduct and Ethics applicable to Directors as available on the 
website of the company. 

2. They will abide by the guidelines of professional conduct, role, function and duties as an 
Independent Directors provided in Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. 

3. They will not hold office as a Director or any other office in a competing firm/entity. 
4. They are expected to stay updated on how best to discharge their roles, responsibilities, and duties 

and liabilities, as an Independent Director of the Company under applicable law, including keeping 
abreast of current changes and trends in economic, political, social, financial, legal and corporate 
governance practices. 



 
 

 
5. They are expected to: 
a) Take decisions objectively and solely in the interests of the Company; 
b) Facilitate Company’s adherence to high standards of ethics and corporate behavior; 
c) Guide the Board in monitoring the effectiveness of the Company’s governance Practices and to 

recommend changes, required if any; 
d) Guide the Board in monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of Management, Board 

Members and Stakeholders, including misuse of corporate asset and abuse in related party 
transactions 

e) Guide the Board in ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting 
systems, including the independent audit, and that appropriate systems of control are in place, in 
particular, systems for risk management, financial and operational control, and compliance with the 
law and relevant standards 

Performance Evaluation 

The Board of Directors shall take into consideration the following parameters for the purpose of 
evaluating the performance of Independent directors. The evaluation scale is a simple two-point 
scale i.e. SATISFACTORY OR UNSATISFACTORY. 

Their reappointment or extension of term and their remuneration will be recommended by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board, pursuant to a performance evaluation 
carried out by the Board on the basis of following specific issues and questions: 

1. Attendance and Participation. 
2. Pro-active and positive approach with regard to Board and Senior Management. 
3. Maintaining confidentiality. 
4. Acting in good faith and in the interest of the company as a whole. 
5. Exercising duties with due diligence and reasonable care. 
6. Complying with legislations and regulations in letter and spirit. 
7. Openness to ideas, perspectives and opinions and ability to challenge old practices and throwing up 

new ideas for discussion. 
8. Maintaining relationships of mutual trust and respect with Board members. 
9. Capacity to effectively examine financial and other information on operations of the company and 

the ability to make positive contribution thereon. 
 

The evaluation of Independent Directors shall be done by the Board. Based on the above criteria 
Independent Directors has to be assessed by giving a rating of SATISFATORY OR 
UNSATISFACTORY. 

Remuneration 

1. Their annual remuneration will be as under: 

a) sitting fees for attending each meeting of the Board and its Committees as may be determined by the 
Board from time to time, and 

b) profit related commission, if any, determined by the Board and if approved by members will be 
payable at the end of each financial year based upon the performance of the Company and upon the 
performance of Independent Directors which will be evaluated by the Board of Directors. 



 
 

2. They will be entitled to reimbursement of expenses incurred by them in connection with attending 
the Board meetings, Board Committee meetings, general meetings and in relation to the business of 
the Company towards hotel accommodation, travelling and other out-of pocket expenses. 

3. Pursuant to applicable law, they will not be entitled to any stock options. 

Changes of personal details 

During the term, they shall promptly intimate the Company Secretary and the Registrar of 
Companies in the prescribed manner, of any change in address or other contact and personal details 
provided to the Company. 

Miscellaneous 

1. They will have access to confidential information, whether or not the information is marked or 
designated as “confidential” or “proprietary”, relating to the Company and its business including 
legal, financial, technical, commercial, marketing and business-related records, data, documents, 
reports, etc., client information, intellectual property rights (including trade secrets), (“Confidential 
Information”). 

They shall use reasonable efforts to keep confidential and to not disclose to any third party, such 
Confidential Information. If any Confidential Information is required to be disclosed by them in 
response to any summons or in connection with any litigation, or in order to comply with any 
applicable law, order, regulation or ruling, then any such disclosure should be, to the extent possible, 
with the prior consent of the Board. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

ANNEXURE-2 to the Board’s Report 

 
 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required 
under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of 

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 

 
i. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 

company for the financial year 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director & Designation Ratio of remuneration of each Director to 
median remuneration of employees 

1. Mr. Rajeev Gupta 
Managing Director 

0.34:1.00 

 
ii. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director and Company Secretary in the financial 

year 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director & 
KMP 

Designation % Increase in 
remuneration of 
Director & KMP 

1. Mr. Rajeev Gupta Managing Director Nil 
2. Mrs. Jyoti Sharma Company Secretary 

(resigned w.e.f. 
28.02.2022) 

Nil 

 
iii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year -11.81% 

 
iv. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company – 119 

 
v.Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration; 
 

vi. The average annual increase in the salaries of employees during the year was -11.81% 
whereas there was a reduction in the managerial remuneration (Managing Director’s remuneration) 
due to financial crisis in the Company during the financial year 2021-22.  



 
 

*  Resigned w.e.f. 08.02.2022  
** Resigned w.e.f. 28.02.2022 
*** Resigned w.e.f 15.03.2022 
 

vii. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company 
 

viii. The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
 
Statement showing the names and other particulars of the top ten employees in terms of 
remuneration drawn as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules,  
2014 
 
  
Notes:  

1. None of the Employees named above is relative of any Director of the Company 
 

        For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
            

Date:  05.07.2022                                                                                                                Sd/- 
Place: New Delhi                                                                                                             Rajeev Gupta 

                                                                         Chairman and Managing Director 
                                                                                                         DIN: 00503196 

 
 

 
  

S.N. E.Code Name 
Ag
e 

Designation/
Nature Of 

Duties 

Total 
Remunera
tion Per 
Annum   
(In Rs.) 

Educational 
Qualificatio

n 

Experi
ence 

D.O.J 
Previous 

Employment 

1 1318 Raj Mani Verma 52 Plant Head 15,00,000 
BE 
(Mechanical
) 

22 01-11-2018 
Vitro Industries 
Pvt Ltd 

2 11 Shefali Chopra* 38 Sr. Manager 8,41,258 B.COM 12 15-01-2018 
RCI Industries 
And Technologies 
Limited 

3 1125 Anshuman Uppal 35 Manager 7,60,000 B.Com 10 01-03-2017 Stesalit Ltd. 

4 1117 Samir Manna 54 Manager 7,06,223 ITI Fitter 28 18-11-2016 Arcotech Ltd. 

5 1160 Shriman Nishad 46 
Assistant 
Manager 

6,24,000 ITI Fitter 27 18-07-2017 
Rimjhim Stinlees 
Ltd. 

6 114 Jyoti Sharma** 31 
Company 
Secretary 

6,00,000 CS 4 04-05-2020 
Castex 
Technologies Ltd. 

7 28 
Om Prakash 
Sharma 

49 Manager 5,37,111 10th 30 20-01-2014 
Bharat 
Heavymission  

8 35 
Khemchandra 
Gupta 

45 Executive 5,18,844 MSC 22 01-01-2009 
Devi Metal 
Technologies 

9 1333 Subhash Singh 55 Sr.Supervisor 5,04,000 12th 32 22-11-2018 Arcotech Ltd. 

10 4 Sumit Gupta*** 32 Manager 4,84,908 MBA 12 03-03-2017 
New India 
Cuprotec Pvt.Ltd. 



 
 

ANNEXURE-3 to the Board’s Report 
 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

To,  
The Members,  
RCI Industries & Technologies Limited  
Unit No. 421, 4th Pearl Omaxe,  
Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura  
Delhi – 110034  
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by RCI Industries & Technologies Limited (hereinafter 
called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 
thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the RCI Industries & Technologies Limited, books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and compliance-mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by RCI Industries & Technologies Limited (“the company”) for the financial year ended 
on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of:  
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;  
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;  

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under 
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings;  

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-  
 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;  

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;  
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009.  
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999- Not Applicable during this Audit Period  
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008  
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  
g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity shares) Regulations, 2009- Not 

Applicable during this Audit Period  



 
 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of securities) Regulations, 1998- Not 
Applicable during this Audit Period  
 

vi. As per information provided by the management, the following laws as applicable specifically to the 
company:  
 

a) Income Tax Act, 1961;  
b) Custom Law, 1962;  
c) Central Excise Act,  
d) Applicable Sales Tax Act,  
e) Goods & Service Tax Act, 2017 
f)  Environmental Protection Act, 1986  

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  
i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India  

ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the company with Bombay Stock Exchange.  
 
During the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, standards, etc mentioned above. 
  
We further report that  
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of 
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance 
with the provisions of the Act.  
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting.  
 
All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in 
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.  
We further report that there are adequate systems and process in the company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliances with the applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines.  
 
We further report that during the audit period the company has not made specific events/actions 
having a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 
regulations, guidelines etc.  
 
We further report that company received a letter from SEBI for non-compliance observed in the 
General purpose Financial Statements of Year 2014-15 that company had not complied with 
accounting standard AS-1, AS-2, AS-3, AS-9, AS-13, AS-15, AS-17, AS-18 & AS-26 issued by 
ICAI in preparation and presentation of the financial statement which is in violation of Clause 49 of 
the listing agreement read with Regulation 103 of SEBI(LODR) Regulations 2015 and Section 21 of 
Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 
 

For Kiran & Associates  
Company Secretaries  

Place: Delhi           
Sd/- 

Kiran (Proprietor)  
Date: 28.05.2022         Membership No. 37306  

Certificate of Practice No. 14168  
A037306D000417136 



 
 

ANNEXURE-4 to the Board’s Report 
 

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF RCI INDUSTRIES & TECHNOLOGIES 
LIMITED  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022 
 
We, Kiran & Associates, have examined:  
 
(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by RCI 
Industries & Technologies Limited (“the listed entity”),  
(b) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,  
(c) website of the listed entity,  
(d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this 
certification, for the year ended 31.03.2022 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the 
provisions of :  
 

a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, 
circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and  

b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the 
Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (“SEBI”);  
 
The Specific regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have 
been examined, include:-  
 

a)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015;  

b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018;  

c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;  

d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;  
e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008;  
f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable 

Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013; 
 
g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;  
and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder; and based on the above examination,  
 
I hereby report that, during the Review Period:  
 

a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ 
guidelines issued there under,  

b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations 
and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder insofar as it appears from our examination of those 
records.  

c) The following are the details of actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/ 
material subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard 
Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ 
Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder: 

 



 
 

Sr. 
No.  

Action taken 
by  

Details of violation  Details of action taken 
E.g. fines, warning 
letter, debarment, etc.  
Observations/ 
remarks of the 
Practicing Company 
Secretary, if any.  

Comments of the 
Practicing Company 
Secretary on the 
actions taken by the 
listed entity  

 
1. 

 

SEBI In Financial Year 2014-15, 
AS-1, AS-2, AS-3, AS-9, 
AS-13, AS-15, AS-17, AS-
18 & AS-26 issued by ICAI 
in preparation and 
presentation of the financial 
statement which in violation 
of Clause 49 of the listing 
agreement read with 
Regulation 103 of 
SEBI(LODR) Regulations 
2015 and Section 21 of 
Securities Contracts 
(Regulation) Act, 1956.  

Warning Letter issued  As advised by SEBI 
company disclosure in 
respect of 
noncompliance with 
requirement of AS-9 & 
AS-26 in the financial 
Statement of 2014-15 
(quantum and impact of 
the same of financial 
result) in the financial 
statement for the FY 
2021-22  

 
(d) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in 
previous reports: 
 

Sr. 
No.  

Observations of the 
Practicing Company 
Secretary in the 
previous reports  
57  

Observations made in 
the secretarial 
compliance report for 
the year ended…  
(The years are to be 
mentioned)  

Actions taken by 
the listed entity, if 
any  

Comments of the 
Practicing Company 
Secretary on the 
actions taken by the 
listed entity  

NA 
 
Place: Delhi  
Date: 28.05.2022  

Kiran & Associates  
 

Sd/- 
Kiran Sharma  

(Prop.)  
ACS No.: A37306  

C P No.: 14168  
UDIN A037306D000416894 

 
 

  



 
 

ANNEXURE-5 to the Board’s Report 
 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
 

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs 
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or 
programs: 
 
Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
of the Board had approved a CSR Policy with primary focus on Vocational skills etc. The CSR 
policy is available on the website of the Company www.rciind.com. 
 

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:     
 
The CSR Committee of the Board of Directors comprises of 3 Directors. Mr. Mukesh Kumar Tyagi, 
Independent Director is the Chairman of the Committee while Mr. Ritesh Kumar, Independent 
Director and Mr. Rajeev Gupta, Chairman & Managing Director are its members. 
 

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years:      
 

Financial Years Net Profit (In Lakhs) 
2018-19 2651.62 
2019-20 (14322.41) 
2020-21 (9224.97) 
Total (94,04,15,178) 
Average Net Profit/loss (31,34,71,726) 

 
4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above) for FY 2021-22:     

NA 
 

5. Details of CSR spent during Financial Year 2021-22 
 
Particulars Amount (In Rs.) 
Total amount to be spent for the financial year 2021-22 Nil 
Amount unspent, if any Nil 
Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year 2021-22 Nil 
 

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last 
three financial years or any part thereof, the reasons for not spending the amount:  
 
The Company has failed to spend the above specified amount towards the CSR as your company has 
incurred heavy losses amounting to Rs. 71.37 Crores during the year ended on 31st March, 2022.  
 

7. Responsibility statement, of the CSR Committee, that the implementation and monitoring of 
CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company:  
 
The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in 
compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company. 
 
Place: New Delhi                                                      Sd/-                                                      Sd/ 
Dated: 05.07.2022                                        Rajeev Gupta                             Mukesh Kumar Tyagi 

Chairman & Managing Director        Chairman, CSR Committee 
DIN: 00503196                                       DIN: 08698810  



 
 

ANNEXURE-6 to the Board’s Report 

 

 
FORM AOC-2 

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)] 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto 
 

1. DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS NOT AT ARM’S 
LENGTH BASIS 

 

1 Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Not applicable 
2 Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions Not applicable 
3 Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ transactions Not applicable 
4 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 

including the value, if any 
Not applicable 

5 Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 
transactions 

Not applicable 

6 Date(s) of approval by the Board Not applicable 
7 Amount paid as advances, if any Not applicable 
8 Date on which the special resolution was passed in general 

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188 
Not applicable 

 
2. 2. DETAILS OF MATERIAL CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT OR TRANSACTIONS AT 

ARM’S LENGTH BASIS 
 

1 Name(s) of the related party and nature of 
relationship 

As per Notes no. 34 of Notes to accounts 
forming part of Annual Report 

2 Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ 
transactions 

As per Notes no.34 of Notes to accounts 
forming part of Annual Report 

3 Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ 
transactions 

As per Notes no.34 of Notes to accounts 
forming part of Annual Report 

4 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 
or transactions including the value, if any 

As per Notes no.34 of Notes to accounts 
forming part of Annual Report 

5 Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any As per Notes no.34 of Notes to accounts 
forming part of Annual Report 

6 Amount paid as advances, if any As per Notes no.34 of Notes to accounts 
forming part of Annual Report 

 
By Order of the Board of Directors 
 

For RCI Industries & Technologies Limited 

 
Sd/- 
 
Rajeev Gupta 
Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN 00503196 

 
  



 
 

ANNEXURE – 7 to the Board’s Report 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
 
1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
The Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages the attainment of the highest levels 
of transparency, accountability and equity, in all facets of its operations and all its interactions with 
the stakeholders including shareholders, employees, customers, government, suppliers and lenders 
and to build the confidence of the society in general. The Company believes in adopting the 
philosophy of professionalism, transparency and accountability in all areas and is committed to 
pursue growth by adhering to the highest national and international standards of Corporate 
Governance. 
 
2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 
(i) Composition of the Board 
 
The Board has an appropriate composition of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors. 
The composition of the Board satisfies the requirements of Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) read with 
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”). 
 
The Independent Directors on the Board are experienced, competent and reputed names in their 
respective fields. The Independent Directors take active part at the Board and Committee Meetings 
which adds value in the decision-making process of the Board of Directors. The Independent 
Directors constitute half of the total strength of Board as on 31st March, 2022, the details are as 
under:  
 

Category of Directors No. of Directors % of total no. of Directors 
 

Executive Director 1 25 
Non-Executive Independent Director 2 50 
Other Non-Executive Director               1 25 
Total 4 100 
 
(ii) Directors’ Attendance Record and their other Directorships/ Committee Memberships 
 
As mandated by Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations, none of the Directors is a member of more 
than ten Board Committees (considering only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee) or Chairman of more than five Committees across all public limited companies (listed or 
unlisted) in which he/she is a Director. Further all Directors have informed about their Directorships, 
Committee memberships/ Chairmanships including any changes in their positions. Relevant details 
of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2021 are given below: 
 

Name of the Directors/DIN Category of Directorship No. 
of 

Boar
d 

Meet
ing 

atten
ded 

Attenda
nce at 

the last 
AGM 

held on 
30.09.20

21 

No. of other 
Directorship 
held in listed 

entities 
including 
this listed 

entity* 

No. of Committee Positions in 
Audit/Stakeholder Committee held 
in listed entities including this listed 

entity** 
 
 

Membership Chairmanship 

Mr. Rajeev Gupta 
(DIN: 00503196) 

Chairman, Managing 
Director, Promoter 

Executive 

8 Yes 1 2 - 

Mrs. Mamta Gupta  Promoter Non- 8 Yes 1 - - 



 
 

(DIN: 00503302) Executive  
Mr. Mukesh Kumar Tyagi 

(DIN:08698810)  
Independent Director 8 yes 1 2 2 

Mr. Ritesh Kumar 
(DIN:08698796) 

Independent Director 7 yes 1 2 - 

 
*This excludes directorship held in Public Companies, Private Companies, Foreign Companies and 
Companies formed under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 
**In accordance with Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations, Chairmanships/Memberships of only 
Audit Committees and Stakeholders Relationship Committee in all Public Limited Companies 
(Listed and Unlisted) have been considered. 
 
All Directors are in compliance with the limit on Directorships as prescribed under Regulation 17A 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
None of the Directors are related to each other except Mr. Rajeev Gupta and Mrs. Mamta Gupta, 
being relatives. 
 
(iii)    Profile of Board of Directors 
 
1. Mr. Rajeev Gupta, Managing Director (DIN: 00503196) 
 
Mr. Rajeev Gupta, aged 54 years is an Executive and Managing Director of the Company. He is 
Graduate in Commerce from Hindu College, Delhi University by qualification. He is rich experience 
of 30+ years in the Industry.  
 
2. Mrs. Mamta Gupta (DIN: 00503302) 
 
Mrs. Mamta Gupta, aged 53 years is Non-Executive-Non-Independent Director of the Company. She 
is Graduate from Delhi University by qualification she is having an experience in the field of human 
relations and planned & directed strategies, development of advertising campaign, creative 
development in the industry.  
 
3. Mr. Mukesh Kumar Tyagi (DIN: 08698810) 
 
Mr. Mukesh Kumar Tyagi, aged 40 years is Non-Executive-Independent Director of the Company. 
He is Graduate from Chaudhary Charan Singh University and MBA Pursuing from Rajasthan 
University. He is looking into day-to-day affairs of the Company and is part of the core management 
of the Company.  
 
4. Mr. Ritesh Kumar (DIN: 08698796) 
 
Mr. Ritesh Kumar, aged 32 years is Non-Executive- Independent Director of the Company. He is 
Graduate B. Com (Hons) from Lalit Narayan Mithla University, Darbhanga, Bihar. He is looking 
into day-to-day affairs of the Company and having an experience in the field of Administration & 
Advisor to the Industries. 
 
(iv) Independent Directors  
 
As mandated by the Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors on your Company’s Board: 
 
a. Are persons of integrity and possess relevant expertise and experience, in the opinion of the Board 
of Directors; 
 
b. Are not a Promoter of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company; 



 
 

 
c. Are not related to Promoters or Directors in the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate 
company;  
 
d. Apart from receiving Director’s remuneration, have or had no material pecuniary relationship with 
the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their Promoters, or Directors, during 
the two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year;  
 
e. Have no relative, who has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the Company, its 
holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their Promoters, or Directors, amounting to two per 
cent or more of its gross turnover or total income or Fifty Lakh rupees or such higher amount as may 
be prescribed from time to time, whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financial 
years or during the current financial year; 
f. Neither themselves nor any of their relatives —  
 
A. hold or have held the position of a Key Managerial Personnel or are or have been employee of the 
Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three financial years 
immediately preceding the financial year in which they were proposed to be appointed;  
 
B. are or have been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial years 
immediately preceding the financial year in which they were proposed to be appointed, of -  

1) a firm of Auditors or Company Secretaries in practice or Cost Auditors of the Company or its 
holding, subsidiary or associate company; or  

2) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the Company, its holding, 
subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten per cent or more of the gross turnover of such 
firm; 
 

3) hold together with their relatives two per cent or more of the total voting power of the Company; or  
 

4) is a Chief Executive or Director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organisation that 
receives twenty five per cent or more of its receipts or corpus from the Company, any of its 
Promoters, Directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate company or that holds two per cent or 
more of the total voting power of the Company;  
 

5) is a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of the Company;  
6) are not less than 21 years of age.  

 
The Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence laid down 
under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. 
 
Maximum Tenure of Independent Directors  
 
In accordance with Section 149(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, the current tenure of Independent 
Directors of the Company is for a term of 5 consecutive years from the date of their appointment. 
 
 
Number of Independent Directorships 
 
In compliance with Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations, Directors of the Company do not serve 
as Independent Director in more than seven listed companies. In case he/she is serving as a Whole-
Time Director in any listed company, does not hold the position of Independent Director in more 
than three listed companies.  
 
Terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors 
 



 
 

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors have been disclosed on the 
website of the Company viz. www.rciind.com .  
 
Separate Meeting of Independent Director 
 
In accordance with Companies Act, 2013, the Independent Directors of the Company shall hold at 
least one meeting in a year without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and members of 
management.  
 
During the year under review, the Independent Directors had 1 (one) meeting i.e 14.02.2022 without 
the presence of Non-Independent Directors and members of the Management. At this meeting, the 
Independent Directors inter alia evaluated the performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the 
Board of Directors as a whole, evaluated the performance of the Chairman of the Board and 
discussed aspects relating to the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between 
the Company, the Management and the Board. 
 
Familiarisation Program for Independent Directors  
 
The Company conducts Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors to enable them to 
familiarize with the Company, its management and its operations so as to gain a clear understanding 
of their roles, rights and responsibilities for the purpose of contributing significantly towards the 
growth of the Company.  They are given full opportunity to interact with senior management 
personnel and are provided with all the documents required and/or sought by them to have a good 
understanding of the Company, its business model and various operations and the industry, it is a 
part. The Policy on Familarisation Programme for Independent Directors is also available on the 
Company’s website www.rciind.com under the web link 
http://www.rciind.com/yahoo_site_admin/assets/docs/FamiliarizationProgrammeForIndependentDir
ectors.pdf 
 
Performance Evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Individual Directors, including 
Independent Directors 
 
Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the 
Board, in consultation with its Nomination & Remuneration Committee, has formulated a framework 
containing, inter-alia, the criteria for performance evaluation of the entire Board of the Company, its 
Committees and Individual Directors, including Independent Directors. The framework is monitored, 
reviewed and updated by the Board, in consultation with the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, based on need and new compliance requirements.  
 
For evaluation of the entire Board and its Committees a structured questionnaire, covering various 
aspects of the functioning of the Board and its Committee, such as, adequacy of the constitution and 
composition of the Board and its Committees, matters addressed in the Board and Committee 
meetings, processes followed at the meeting, Board`s focus, regulatory compliances and Corporate 
Governance, etc. is in place. Similarly, for evaluation of Individual Director’s performance, the 
questionnaire covers various aspects like his/ her profile, contribution in Board and Committee 
meetings, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations, regulatory compliances and 
governance, etc.  
 
Accordingly, the annual performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and each Director was 
carried out for the financial year 2021-22. 
 
The Independent Directors had met separately on 14.02.2022 and discussed, inter-alia, the 
performance of non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole and the performance of the 
Chairman of the Company after taking into consideration the views of executive and Non-Executive 
Directors.  



 
 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also carried out evaluation of every Director`s 
performance. The performance evaluation of all the Independent Directors have been done by the 
entire Board, excluding the Director being evaluated. On the basis of performance evaluation done 
by the Board, it determines whether to extend or continue their term of appointment, whenever the 
respective term expires.  
 
The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
 
Disclosure of relationships between Directors inter-se 
 
None of the Directors are related to each other, except Mr. Rajeev Gupta and Mrs. Mamta Gupta 
who are related to each other, being Husband and Wife.  
 
Remuneration Policy 
 
The remuneration paid to Executive Directors of the Company is approved by the Board of Directors 
on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Company’s 
remuneration strategy is market-driven and aims at attracting and retaining high caliber talent. The 
strategy is in consonance with the existing industry practice and is directed towards rewarding 
performance, based on review of achievements, on a periodical basis. 
 
Remuneration paid to Executive Directors 
 
Your Board currently comprises of one Executive Director viz. Mr. Rajeev Gupta, Managing 
Director. The remuneration paid to the Managing Director was Rs. 36,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty-Six 
Lacs) during the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 as a salary and perquisites duly recommended 
by the nomination and remuneration committee and approved by the Board in their meeting held on 
November 30, 2019, in accordance with Section 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Further, the Company has decided the reduction in the current salary from Rs. 36,00,000/- to Rs. 
18,00,000/- due to financial stress in the Company during the period under the review. 
 
Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors 
 
No Remuneration was paid to Non-Executive Directors during the year under review. 
 
Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors  
 
Mrs. Mamta Gupta, Non-Executive Promoter Director as on March 31, 2022, holding 11,64,930 
equity shares of Rs.10/- each, in the Company. None of the other Non-Executive Directors hold 
shares in the Company. Since the Company has not issued any convertible instruments, disclosure in 
this respect is not applicable.  
 
In accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, 
the Appointment of Board Members and Remuneration Policy have been attached as ‘ANNEXURE-
1’ of the Board Report.  
 
It is thereby, affirmed that remuneration is as per remuneration policy of the Company. 
 
(v) Board Procedure and Number of Board Meetings 
 
The Board of Directors of your Company plays a pivotal role in ensuring good governance and 
functioning of the Company. The Board’s role, functions, responsibility, and accountability are well 
defined. The Board reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company, as well as 
steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances, if any. 



 
 

 
The Board meets at regular intervals and during the year, 8 (Eight) meetings of the Board of 
Directors were held and the maximum gap between no two board meetings exceeded one hundred 
and twenty days. 
All the members of the Board were provided requisite information as required as per Listing 
Agreement well before the Board Meeting. The Directors of the Company are not related inter-se 
. 
Details of meetings are as follows:   
 

Sl. 
No. 

Date Board Strength No. of Director 
Present 

1 16.04.2021 4 4 
2 30.06.2021 4 4 
3 13.08.2021 4 2 
4 01.11.2021 4 4 
5 13.11.2021 4 4 
6 25.11.2021 4 4 
7 10.01.2022 4 4 
8 14.02.2022 4 4 

 
3.CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE 

 
The Company has obtained certificate from Practicing Company Secretaries, M/s Gaurav Shah & 
Associates, confirming that none of the Directors on Board is debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as Director of the Company by the Board / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or 
any such statutory authority is annexed as an Annexure-1 to this Report. 
 

4.COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 
Your Company has 4 Board Level Committees: 
 
A. Audit Committee 
B. Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
C. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
D. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
 
The composition of various Committees of the Board of Directors is available on the website of the 
Company at www.rciind.com and web link for the same is 
http://www.rciind.com/yahoo_site_admin/assets/docs/CompositionOfBoardCommittees.pdf. 
 
The Board is responsible for constituting, assigning, co-opting and fixing the terms of reference of 
various Committees. Details on the role and composition of these Committees, including the number 
of meetings held during the financial year and the related attendance are provided below. 
 
A). AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 
The Audit Committee has been constituted by the Board in compliance with the requirements of 
Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. 
 
(i) The Role of Audit Committee includes the following: 
 

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial information to 
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 



 
 

2. Recommending to the Board the appointment, reappointment, terms of appointment/ reappointment 
and, if required, the replacement or removal of the Statutory Auditor and the fixation of audit 
fees/remuneration. 

3. Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors. 
4. Reviewing, with the Management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for 

approval, with particular reference to: 
a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the 

Board’s report in terms of sub section (5) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 
c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by the Management. 
d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 
e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 
f) Disclosure of any related party transactions. 
g) Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

 
5. Review/examine, with the Management, the quarterly/year to date financial statements and auditor’s 

report thereon, before submission to the Board for approval. 
6. Reviewing with the Management, the financial statements of subsidiaries and in particular the 

investments made by each of them. 
7. Reviewing/Monitoring, with the Management, the statement of uses/application/end use of funds 

raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.) and related matters, the 
statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/ 
notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of the proceeds 
of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in 
this matter. 

8. Review and monitor the Auditor’s independence, performance and effectiveness of Audit process. 
9. Approval or any subsequent Modification of transactions of the Company with related parties. 
10. Scrutiny of inter- corporate loans and investments. 
11. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary. 
12. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems. 
13. Reviewing, with the Management, performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of 

the internal control systems. 
14. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure 
coverage and frequency of internal audit. 

15. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow-ups there on. 
16. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where 

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and 
reporting the matter to the Board. 

17. Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit 
as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

18. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

19. To review the functioning of the Whistle- Blower Mechanism. 
20. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the Whole-Time Finance Director or any other person heading 

the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and 
background, etc. of the candidate. 

21. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 
 
Further, the Audit Committee is empowered to investigate any activity within its terms of reference, 
seek information it requires from any employee, obtain outside legal or other independent 
professional advice and secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if considered 
necessary. Apart from the above, the Audit Committee also exercises the role and powers entrusted 
upon it by the Board of Directors from time to time. 
 



 
 

 
(ii) The Audit Committee also reviews the following information: 
 
1. Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 
2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted 
by management; 
3. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors, if any; 
4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 
5. Appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Internal Auditor shall be subject to review 
by the Audit Committee. 
6. Statement of deviations: 
 

(a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, 
submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) (whenever applicable). 
(b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) (whenever applicable). 
 
(iii) Composition of the Committee 
 
The Composition of Audit Committee is as under: 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation Category 

1 Mr. Mukesh Tyagi Chairman Independent Director 
2 Mr. Ritesh Kumar Member Independent Director 
3 Mr. Rajeev Gupta Member Executive Director 
 
(iv) Audit Committee Meetings  
 
In addition to the Audit Committee members, the Audit Committee meetings are generally attended 
by the Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors of the 
Company. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee. 
 
During the year under review, the Audit Committee met at least once in each quarter and the 
maximum time gap between two Audit Committee meetings did not exceed the limit prescribed in 
Regulation 18 of the of the Listing Regulations.  
 
The Audit Committee met 5 (Five) times during the year under review i.e. on 30.06.2021, 
13.08.2021, 13.11.2021, 25.11.2021 and 14.02.2022. The necessary quorum was present for all the 
meeting held during the year. The attendance at the above meeting as under: 
 
 
Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director No. of meetings attended 

1. Mr. Mukesh Kumar Tyagi 5 
2. Mr. Ritesh Kumar 5 
3. Mr. Rajeev Gupta 5 
 
(v) NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted by the Board in compliance with 
the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing 
Regulations. 
 
(i) Terms of Reference 



 
 

 
The brief terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee inter alia include: 
 

1. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
Director.  
 

2. Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment 
and removal. 

3. Formulate the criteria for evaluation of Director’s and Board’s performance and to carry out the 
evaluation of every Director’s performance. 

4. Recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other Employees. 

5. Devising a policy on Board diversity. 
6. To approve Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and Senior 

Employees (employees one level below KMP) and to approve promotion / increments / rewards / 
incentives for the said employees. 

7. To decide and approve grant of Stock Options, including terms of grant etc. under the Company’s 
Employee Stock Option Scheme, if any. 
 
(ii) Composition of the Committee  
  
The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as under: 
 
 
Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation Category 

1. Mr. Mukesh Kumar 
Tyagi 

Chairman Independent Director 

2. Mr. Ritesh Kumar Member Independent Director 
3. Mrs. Mamta Gupta Member Non-Executive Non-Independent 

Director 
  
The Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Committee. 
 
(iii) Meeting and Attendance  
 
During the Financial ended 31st March, 2022, 3 meetings were held on 30-06-202, 13-08-2021, 
13.11.2021. 
 
 
The attendance at the above meetings was as under:  
 

Sl. No. Name of Director No. of meeting attended 
1. Mr. Mukesh Kumar Tyagi 3 
2. Mr. Ritesh Kumar 3 
3. Mrs. Mamta Gupta 3 

 
C). STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 
The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee has been constituted by the Board in compliance with the 
requirement of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the Listing 
Regulations. 
 



 
 

(i) Terms of Reference 
 
The brief terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee inter alia include: 
 
a) To approve transfer of shares. 
b) To specifically look into the redressal of grievances of shareholders, investors, debenture holders 
and other security holders.  
c) To provide adequate and timely information to shareholders. 
d) To consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the company, including complaints 
related to transfer of shares, issue of Duplicate Share certificates, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-
receipt of declared dividends and other shares related matters. 
(ii)  Composition of the Committee  
 
The Composition of the Committee is as under: 
 
Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation Category 

1. Mr. Mukesh Kumar Tyagi Chairman Independent Director 
2. Mr. Ritesh Kumar Member Independent Director 
3. Mr. Rajeev Gupta Member Executive Director 
 
(iii) Meetings and Attendance 
 
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, 3 (Three) meetings were held on 30-06-2021, 13-
08-2021 and 13.11.202. 
 
The attendance at the above meetings was as under: -  
 
Sl. No.  Name of Director No. of meetings attended 
1. Mr. Mukesh Kumar Tyagi 3 
2. Mr. Ritesh Kumar 3 
3. Mr. Rajeev Gupta 3 

 
Details of number of Complaints received (inclusive of SCORES) from Members during the year 
ended March 31, 2022 is as under: 
 
Complaints received                                 Pending as on 31st March, 2022 
                 0                                                                    Nil 
 
D). CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE  
 
The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee has been constituted by the Board in 
compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
(i) Terms of Reference 
 
a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall 
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act, 2013; 
 
b) Recommend and monitor the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in 
clause (a), 
 
c) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time; and 



 
 

 
d) Any other functions as may deem fit by the CSR Committee/Board or as may be necessitated by 
any regulatory framework as amended from time to time.  
 
(ii) Composition of the Committee 
 
The Composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as under: 
 
Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation Category 

1. Mr. Mukesh Kumar Tyagi Chairman Independent Director 
2. Mr. Ritesh Kumar Member Independent Director 
3. Mr. Rajeev Gupta Member Executive Director 

(iii) Meetings and Attendance 
 
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, 2 (two) meetings of the CSR Committee were held 
i.e. on 30-06-2021 and 13-08-2021. 
 
The attendance at the above meeting is as under: 
 
Sl. No.  Name of Director No. of meetings attended 
1. Mr. Mukesh Kumar Tyagi 2 
2. Mr. Ritesh Kumar 2 
3. Mr. Rajeev Gupta 2 

 
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES - MONITORING FRAMEWORK 
 
The Company monitors performance of its subsidiary companies, inter-alia, by the following means: 
 

i. The Audit Committee reviews financial statements of the subsidiary companies, along with 
investments made by them, on a quarterly basis.  

ii. ii) The Board of Directors reviews the Board meeting minutes and statements of all significant 
transactions and arrangements, if any, of subsidiary companies.  
 
The Company has formulated a policy for determining its ‘Material’ Subsidiaries and the same is 
available on the website of the Company viz. www.rciind.com.  
 
Your Company does not have any unlisted material subsidiary, incorporated in India. [Under the 
Listing Regulations, a “Material Subsidiary” shall mean a subsidiary, whose income or net worth 
exceeds twenty percent of the consolidated income or net worth respectively, of the listed entity and 
its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year].  
 
Company also does not have a listed subsidiary. 
 
DICLOSURES 
 
Related Party Transactions 
 
In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, the Board of 
Directors of the Company has approved a Related Party Transaction Policy, which is in compliance 
with the applicable provisions of law including the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The said 
Related Party Transaction Policy is also available on the Company’s website and is accessible at 
http://www.rciind.com/yahoo_site_admin/assets/docs/RelatedPartyTransactionPolicy.pdf. 
 



 
 

During the Financial year 2021-22 there were no materially significant related party transactions i.e. 
transactions material in nature, between the Company and its Promoters, Directors or Key 
Managerial Personnel or their relatives etc. having any potential conflict with interests of the 
Company at large or any transaction which was not on arm’s length and / or in ordinary course of 
business. The Company places all the relevant details before the Audit Committee and the Board on 
Quarterly and Annual Basis. 
 
Details of non-compliance by the Company 
 
The results for the Fourth Quarter and year ended 31.03.2022 were uploaded to stock exchange with 
a delay. Hence, penalty as per SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2018/77 dated May 3, 
2018 was paid for the delay. Apart from this your Company has complied with all the requirements 
of regulatory authorities. No penalties were imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI 
or any statutory authority on any other matter related to capital markets during the last three years. 
 
 
Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism  
 
As per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, 
Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism has been approved and implemented within the 
organization. The policy enables the Employees and Directors to raise and report concerns about 
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud of any Director and/ or Employee of the Company or 
any violation of the Code of Conduct. This Policy is also available on the Company’s website and is 
accessible at http://www.rciind.com/yahoo_site_admin/assets/docs/WhistleBlowerPolicy.pdf. 
Further during the year under review, no case was reported under the Vigil Mechanism. No person 
was denied access to Audit Committee. 
 
Disclosure on compliance with Corporate Governance Requirements specified in Listing 
Regulations 
 
The Company has complied with the requirements of Part C (Corporate Governance Report) of sub-
paras (2) to (10) of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations.  
 
The Company has complied with Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 
27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of Sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations and 
necessary disclosures thereof have been made in this Corporate Governance Report. 
 
Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries 
 
In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 16 (c) of the Listing Regulations, the Board of 
Directors of the Company has approved a Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries. The said 
policy determines material subsidiaries of the Company and provides a governance framework for 
them. The said Policy is also available on the Company’s website viz. www.rciind.com. 
 
Your Company does not have any unlisted material subsidiary, incorporated in India.  
 
Code for prevention of Insider-Trading Practices 
 
In accordance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has in 
place a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and a Code of Practices and Procedures 
for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. 
 
The Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading lays down guidelines advising the 
management, staff and other connected persons, on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be 



 
 

made by them while dealing with the shares of the Company, and cautioning them of the 
consequences of violations. The Company Secretary has been appointed as the Compliance Officer.  
 
Commodity Price Risk/Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities 
 
The Company is subject to market risk with respect to commodity price fluctuations. The Company 
proactively manages these risks through forward booking Inventory management and proactive 
vendor development practices.  
 
The Company’s payables and receivables are in foreign currency and due to fluctuations in foreign 
exchange prices, it is subject to foreign exchange risks. The Company has in place a risk 
management framework for identification and monitoring and mitigation of foreign exchange risks. 
The company has entered into foreign exchange forward, option and futures contracts to manage its 
exposure to exchange rate fluctuations, in accordance with its risk management policies. The risks 
are tracked and monitored on a regular basis and mitigation strategies are adopted in line with the 
risk management policy. Moreover, the foreign exchange exposure is also reviewed by the Audit of 
the Board of Directors of the Company for optimization and risk mitigation.  
 
CEO/ CFO Certification 
 
In terms of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, the certification on the financial statements 
of the Company, as certified by the Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director and Chief Financial 
Officer of your Company is annexed as an Annexure-2 to this Report. 
 

Certificate on Corporate Governance  
 
The Certificate confirming compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under 
Schedule V of Listing Regulations is annexed as Annexure 3 to the Corporate Governance Report.  
 
Disclosure Regarding Appointment / Re-Appointment of Directors 
 
The members, at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, shall be considering the re-appointment of 
Mr. Rajeev Gupta as Director, who is retiring at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The detailed 
profile of the Directors has been provided in this report. 
 
Code of Conduct 
 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for the Members of the Board and Senior Managerial 
Personnel. All the Directors and senior functionaries, as defined in the Code, provide their annual 
confirmation of compliance with the Code. Copy of the Code is also available on the Company’s 
website and is accessible at 
http://www.rciind.com/yahoo_site_admin/assets/docs/CodeOfConduct.pdf. 
 

A declaration affirming compliance with the Code of Conduct by the Members of the Board and 
senior Managerial Personnel is given below: 
 
Declaration 
 
In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I 
hereby confirm that, all the Directors and the Senior Management personnel of the Company have 
confirmed compliance with their respective Codes of Conduct, as applicable to them, for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2022. 
 
Rajeev Gupta 
Managing Director 
New Delhi, 05.07.2022 



 
 

 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
A detailed report on Management discussion and analysis is provided separately as a part of this 
Annual Report. 
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 
 
Details of the last three general body meetings held are given below: 
 
Financial 

Year 
Ended 

Day, Date & 
Time 

Venue Special Resolution 
Passed 

March 
31, 2021 

Wednesday, 
September 30, 
10.30 AM 

Through VC, Unit No. 421, 4th 
Floor, Pearl Omaxe Tower, Netaji 
Subhash Place, Pitampura, New 
Delhi-110034 

Re-Appointment of 
Mrs. Mamta Gupta 
(DIN: 00503302) as 
Director 

March 
31, 2020 

Wednesday, The 
30th Day Of 
September, 2020 

Through VC/OAVM, Unit No. 421, 
4th Floor, Pearl Omaxe Tower, 
Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, 
New Delhi-110034 

Re-Appointment of 
Mr. Rajeev Gupta 
(DIN 00503196), as 
Director 
 

March 
31, 2019 

Saturday, 
September 28, 
2019, 09.00 AM 

Regalia Banquet, C-111, Mayapuri, 
Phase-II, New Delhi-110064 

None 
 

 
All Special Resolutions passed in the previous three Annual General Meetings of the Company were 
passed with requisite majority. 
 
None of the resolutions proposed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting needs to be passed by 
Postal Ballot in terms of Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules made thereunder. 
 
POSTAL BALLOT 
 
Resolutions passed by Postal Ballot: 
 
During the year under review, there was no requirement to held Postal ballot. 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of Listing Regulations. In addition to 
the above, the Company has complied with the Reporting of Internal Auditor directly to the Audit 
Committee, the non-mandatory requirements of Listing Regulations.  
 
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
 
Quarterly and Annual Financial Results:  
Pursuant to Regulation 33 and Regulation 30 of the Listing Regulations, the Company furnishes the 
quarterly un-audited as well as annual audited Financial Results, (within 30 minutes of closure of the 
Board meeting) by online filings, to the Stock exchange i.e. BSE Limited. Such information has also 
been displayed in the ‘Investors’ section on the Company’s website i.e. www.rciind.com. Quarterly 
and Annual financial results including other statutory information are published in an English daily 
viz. ‘Financial Express’ (All Edition) and in a vernacular language newspaper viz. ‘Jansatta’ (Delhi 
Edition).  
 
News Releases/Presentations: 



 
 

Official press releases and presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts are 
displayed on Company’s website www.rciind.com. 
 
Website: 
Pursuant to Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, the Company’s website www.rciind.com 
contains a separate section ‘investors’ where all the information needed by shareholders is available 
including information on Directors, Shareholding Pattern, Quarterly Reports, Financial Results, 
Annual Reports, Press Releases and various policies of the Company. 
 
Annual Report: 
Annual Report is circulated to members and other concerned including Auditors etc. Further, the 
Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) Report, highlighting operations, business 
performance, financial and other important aspects of the Company’s functioning, forms an integral 
part of the Annual Report. 
 
 
BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre: 
Your Company has been regularly uploading information related to its financial results, periodical 
filings like shareholding pattern, corporate governance report and other communications on BSE’s 
online portal BSE Corporate Compliance and Listing Centre, a web-based application designated for 
corporate by BSE Limited. 
 
GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
This section inter alia provides information pertaining to the Company, its shareholding pattern, 
means of dissemination of information, share price movements and such other information in terms 
of Listing Regulations relating to Corporate Governance. 
 
A. Annual General Meeting: 
Day & Date: Friday, September 30, 2022 
Venue: AGM held through VC/OAVM, Venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be the Registered 
office of the Company at Unit No. 421, 4th Floor, Pearl Omaxe, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, 
New Delhi-110034 
Time: 10:30 AM 
Last date of receipt of proxy form: NA 
Book Closure: Saturday, September 24, 2022 to Friday, September 30, 2022 (both days inclusive) 
 
B. Financial year: 2021-22 
 
C. Financial Calendar:  
 
For the Financial year 2021-22 
 
Results were announced on: 
First quarter ended 30th June, 2021 Friday, 13.08.2021 
Second quarter and half year ended 30th September, 2021 Saturday, 13.11.2021 
Third quarter and nine months ended 31st December, 2021 Monday, 14.02.2022 
Fourth quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022 Tuesday, 05.07.2022 
 
D. Registered Office & Address for Correspondence: 
     Unit No. 421, 4th Floor, Pearl Omaxe, Netaji Subhash Place, New Delhi-110034 
     Tel: +91 11 41681828, +91 11 27371334 Email: compliance@rciind.com 
     Website: www.rciind.com, CIN: L74900DL1992PLC047055 
 
Email ID for Investors Relation: investors@rciind.com, compliance@rciind.com 
 



 
 

Investor Grievance Officer: Mrs. Priya Rastogi, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, Email 
ID: compliance@rciind.com 
 
E. Plant Locations: Plot No. 84 & 85, HPSIDC Baddi, Distt. Solan, H.P 
 
F. Listing details of Equity Shares:  
 
The Equity Shares of the Company are at present listed at the BSE Limited and the Company has 
paid the annual listing fee for the Financial Year 2021-22 to the said Stock Exchange. 
 
Stock Code: 537254 
 

ISIN at NSDL / CDSL: INE140B01014 
 
G. Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L74900DL1992PLC047055 
 
I. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent: 
 
Shareholders may correspond with the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent at the following address for 
all matters related to transfer/dematerialization of shares and any other query relating to Equity 
shares of your Company: 
 
Bigshare Services Private Limited 
4E/8, First Floor, Jhandewalan Extension,  
New Delhi - 110055 
Tel: 011 2352 2373, Website: www.bigshareonline.com 
Email: bssdelhi@bigshareonline.com 
 
J. Custodial Fees to Depositories: 
 
The Company has paid custodial fees for the year 2021-22 to National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL), the Depositories of the Company. 
 
K. Service of Documents through E-mail  
 
Your Company will be sending the Notice and Annual Report for the Financial Year 2021-22 in 
electronic form to the members whose e-mail address have been made available to the 
Company/Depository Participant(s).  
 
Members holding shares in electronic form but who have not registered their email address 
(including those who wish to change their already registered e-mail id) with their DP yet and 
members holding shares in physical form are requested to register their e-mail address with their DP 
/ Company, as the case may be.  
 
Members who have registered their e-mail address with their DP/ Company but wish to receive the 
said documents in physical form are requested to write to the Company at 
investor@rciind.com/complianc@rciind.com duly quoting their DP ID and Client ID / Folio No., as 
the case may be, to enable the Company to record their decision. 
 
L. E-Voting Facility 
 
In compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 44 of the Listing 
Regulations, your Company is providing e-voting facility to all members to enable them cast their 
votes electronically on all resolutions set forth in the Notice of Annual General Meeting, using the e-
voting platform of NSDL. The instructions for e-voting have been provided in the Notice of Annual 
General Meeting. 



 
 

 
M. Share Transfer System 
 
All Shares have been transferred and returned within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt of 
completed and validly executed documents.  
 
SEBI vide its circular no. MRD/DoP/Cir-05/2009 dated May 20, 2009 clarified that for securities 
market transactions and off-market/ private transactions involving transfer of shares in physical form 
of listed companies, it shall be mandatory for the transferee(s) to furnish copy of PAN card to the 
Company/RTAs for registration of such transfer of shares. The Company and its RTA is complying 
with the aforesaid provisions. 
 
As per the requirement in Regulation 7(3) of the Listing Regulations, certificate on half yearly basis 
confirming due compliance of share transfer formalities duly signed by both the Compliance Officer 
and the authorized representative of Share Transfer Agent was submitted to the Stock Exchanges 
within stipulated time. 
 
RCI Industries & Technologies Limited – Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March 2022 
 
 

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held 
s% to Paid Up 

Capital 
Promoter & Promoter Group            1,07,04,615.00                      68.28  
Trust                      588.00                      0.00   
Resident Individuals & HUF               34,53,550.00  22.03  
Non Resident Indians                2,39,186.00        1.53  
Bodies Corporates (including Clearing 
Members) 

            2,78,476.00                          
8.16  

Total  1,56,76,415.00                 100.00  
 
 
Dematerialization of Equity Shares & Liquidity 
 
As per extant guidelines, trading in equity shares of the Company is mandatory in dematerialized 
form. To facilitate trading in demat form, there are two Depositories i.e. National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The 
Company has entered into agreements with both these Depositories. The Shareholders can open 
account with any of the Depository Participant registered with any of these two Depositories. 
 
Status on Dematerialised shares as on 31st March, 2022 (Equity ISIN No. INE140B01014): 
 

Shares held through No. of share % of Holding 
NSDL 83,91,528 53.53 
CDSL 72,82,086 46.45 

Physical 2801 0.02 
Total 1,56,76,415 100 

 
As on March 31, 2022, 99.98% of the equity shares of the Company are in the dematerialized form. 
Entire Shareholding of the Promoter’s in the Company are held in dematerialized form. The equity 
shares of the Company are frequently traded at BSE Limited (BSE). 
 
Market Price Data Relating to Shares Listed  
 



 
 

The monthly high and low prices of Company’s shares traded on BSE Limited (BSE) for the period 
April 2021 to March 2022 are as under:  
 

Month High Price Low Price 
Apr-21 8.3 6 
May-21 11.99 7.32 
Jun-21 10.5 9.13 
Jul-21 9.88 7.77 

Aug-21 8.8 6.9 
Sep-21 9 7.1 
Oct-21 11.9 7.42 
Nov-21 10.31 8.46 
Dec-21 9.28 7.99 
Jan-22 11.1 8.55 
Feb-22 9.73 6.15 
Mar-22 8.7 6 

 
 

 
 
 

  



 
 

ANNEXURE-1 to the Corporate Governance Report 
 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 
 
The Members of 
RCI INDUSTRIES & TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 
(CIN: L74900DL1992PLC047055) 
Unit No. 421, 4th Pearl Omaxe, Netaji Subhash Place,  
Pitampura, Delhi North West, Delhi-110034, India 
 
On the basis of examination of relevant documents, records, forms, returns and disclosures received 
from the Directors of RCI Industries & Technologies Limited having CIN 
L74900DL1992PLC047055 and having registered office at Unit No. 421, 4th Pearl Omaxe, Netaji 
Subhash Place, Pitampura Delhi North West, Delhi-110034, India  (hereinafter referred to as ‘the 
Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in 
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary 
and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the 
Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 
2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
other Statutory Authority. 
 
Sr. 
No 

Name of Director DIN 
Date of Appointment 

in Company 
01 Rajeev Gupta 00503196 17/01/1992 

02 Mamta Gupta 00503302 24/01/2009 

03 Ritesh Kumar 08698796 08/05/2020 

04 Mukesh Kumar Tyagi 08698810 08/05/2020 
 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these based on our verification.  

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Disclaimer: I have not been made available with details or clarification or Non Applicability 
certificate, with respect to debarment or disqualification pursuant to any order from civil or criminal 
court and thus we are unable to conclude any opinion on attraction of disqualification by any such 
order which have not been presented before us for reporting. 



 
 

For Gaurav Shah and Associates 
Company Secretaries 
Firm Regn. No.: S2019RJ677600 
Peer Review No.: 1371/2021 
 
 
 
GAURAV SHAH 
(Proprietor) 
M. No.: A46647; C.P. No. 21952 
UDIN: A046647D000840066 
 
Date: August 24, 2022 
Place: Jaipur, Rajasthan 

 
  



 
 

 
ANNEXURE-2 to the Corporate Governance Report 

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO REGULATION 33 OF THE SECURITIES & 
EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 
 
We Rajeev Gupta, Managing Director and Mukesh Kumar Tyagi, Chairman of Audit Committee of 
RCI Industries & Technologies Limited (“the Company”) do hereby certify to the Board that: 
 
A. We have reviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the 
year ended March 31, 2022 and that to the best of their knowledge and belief: 
 

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 

 
ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affair and are in compliance 

with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 
B. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the 
year ended March 31, 2022 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct. 
 
C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining 
to financial reporting and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in 
the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have 
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 
 
D. During the year: 

i. there have not been any significant  changes in internal control over financial reporting; 
 

ii. there have not been any significant changes in accounting policies; and  
 

iii. there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we are aware that involve management or 
other employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting. 
 

Sd/-                                              Sd/- 
 

Rajeev Gupta                             Mukesh Kumar Tyagi 
Managing Director                   Chairman of Audit Committee  

 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 05.07.2022 
  



 
 

ANNEXURE-3 to the Corporate Governance Report 
 

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
UNDER CHAPTER IV OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA 
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 2015 
 
 
To, 
 
The Member of 
RCI Industries & Technologies Limited  
(CIN: L74900DL1992PLC047055) 
 
We have examined the relevant records of RCI Industries & Technologies Limited (“Company”) 
for the purpose of certifying compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance under the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2022. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of certification.  
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. 
This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and 
procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in 
Listing Regulations. Our examination was limited to the procedure and implementation process 
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the corporate governance. 
It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of the Corporation. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and information 
furnished to us, we certify that the Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of 
Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) 
and para C and D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2022, 
except with the Appointment of Chief Financial Officer of the Company and delay filing of 
Audited Financial Results with the Stock Exchange for the year ended March 31, 2022. 
 
This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  
 
For Gaurav Shah and Associates 
Company Secretaries 
Firm Regn. No.: S2019RJ677600 
Peer Review No.: 1371/2021 
 
 
GAURAV SHAH 
(Proprietor) 
M. No.: A46647; C.P. No. 21952 
UDIN: A046647D000854181 
 
Date: August 26, 2022 
Place: Jaipur, Rajasthan 

 

 
 



 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 

 
2021-22 (FY2022) continued to be dominated by Covid. In India, the second wave proved far more 
deadly than the first. After a late start, the roll-out of vaccines began in earnest. The nation-wide 
vaccination programme has been a great success. In fact, the vaccination drive played no mean a role 
in minimising the effects of the third wave. The economy, too, was not locked down as in the first 
wave. Consequently, the negative impact on GDP was less than anticipated. 
 
 
Russia’s invasion of Ukraine and its effects on commodity markets, supply chains, inflation, and 
financial conditions have steepened the slowdown in global growth. One key risk to the outlook is 
the possibility of high global inflation accompanied by tepid growth, reminiscent of the stagflation of 
the 1970s. This could eventually result in a sharp tightening of monetary policy in advanced 
economies, which could lead to financial stress in some emerging market and developing economies. 
A forceful and wide-ranging policy response is required to boost growth, bolster macroeconomic 
frameworks, reduce financial vulnerabilities, and support vulnerable groups. 
 
Spillovers from Russia’s invasion of Ukraine are hastening the deceleration of global economic 
activity, which is now expected to slow to 2.9 percent in 2022. The war is leading to high commodity 
prices, adding to supply disruptions, exacerbating inflation, contributing to tighter financial 
conditions, magnifying financial vulnerability, and heightening policy uncertainty. The Russian 
Federation’s invasion of Ukraine has disrupted global energy markets and damaged the global 
economy. 
 
Global GDP Growth 
 
              
  
   
   
   
  
 
 
 
   
   
 
 
 
 
 
(Source: https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/ Issues/2021/03/23/world-economic-outlook-
april-2021) 
 

INDIAN ECONOMY OVERVIEW 

 
The Indian economy has fully recovered to the pre-pandemic real GDP level of 2019-20, according to the 
provisional estimates of GDP released on May 31, 2022. Real GDP growth in FY 2021-22 stands at 8.7%, 
which is 1.5% higher than the real GDP in FY 2019-20. These figures are associated with stronger growth 
momentum, indicating increased economic demand. The investment rate in the fourth quarter increased to 
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its highest level in the previous nine quarters. Moreover, capacity utilisation in the manufacturing sector 
rose in the fourth quarter, as against the third quarter, implying a build-up in demand, which is consistent 
with the growth objectives of the Indian economy. 

Future capital spending of the government in the Indian economy is expected to be supported by factors 
such as tax buoyancy, streamlined tax system, thorough assessment and rationalisation of the tariff 
structure and digitisation of tax filing. In the medium term, an increase in capital spending on 
infrastructure and asset-building projects is set to increase growth multipliers. Furthermore, revival in 
monsoon and Kharif sowing helped the agriculture sector gain momentum. As of July 11, 2022, the 
South-West monsoon has covered the entire country, resulting in 7% higher rainfall than the normal level. 

India has emerged as the fastest-growing major economy in the world, and is expected to be one of the 
top three economic powers globally over the next 10-15 years, backed by its robust democracy and strong 
partnerships. 

Indian Economy: Overview, Market Size, Growth, Development, Statistics...IBEF 

Indian GDP Growth 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Source: https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/ Issues/2021/03/23/world-economic-outlook-
april-2021) 
 

GLOBAL COPPER INDUSTRY OUTLOOK  

Global copper mining production is forecast to increase by 7.8 per cent this year due to a slew of 
new projects coming online and low base effects due to Covid pandemic lockdowns resulting in 
lower output last year, according to Fitch Solutions Country Risk and Industry Research (FSCRIR). 
In a commentary on “Global Copper Mining Outlook”, FSCRIR said the new projects that go on 
stream this year would keep production strong the next few years, supported by rising copper prices 
and demand. Copper prices have gained over 21 per cent this year, though they are off from the 
record highs seen in May. On the London Metal Exchange, copper's three-month contract ended at 
$9,405 a tonne on Wednesday, with the metal’s cash price being $9,385. On May 6, copper three-
month contracts surged to a record $10,724.5 a tonne before paring gains on slowing profit growth in 
Chinese industrial firms. Costlier raw materials have squeezed profits for these companies.  
 
FSCRIR said that Australia and Canada would see most new projects being launched, followed by 
the US, Peru and Chile. In addition, Chile will see most of the expansion in the copper projects. 

 
 

 

 12.5 6.9 

 

                             -8 

 

 

                          2020-21       2021-22              2022-23 



 
 

Regarding the rise in production, Peru’s mine output is forecast to increase by 20 per cent this year 
due to the new projects and last year’s low base effect. Last year, its production declined 12.5 per 
cent compared with the 2.5 million tonnes (mt) output in 2019. The Fitch Solutions research body 
said that multinational miners will continue investing in Peru, which has 10 per cent of the known 
reserves, due to ample mine reserves, lower costs, and a favourable regulatory environment. “We 
believe there is still room for growth through further exploration… Based on Peru’s geography, we 
believe that there is further upside left in Peru for years to come,” FSCRIR said. 
 
China will continue to play “an increasingly important role” in the Peru copper sector. Chinese firms 
will make up 17.2 per cent of the total investment in that country over the next decade. However, 
copper mines ran the risk of “elevated levels of unrest” resulting from the political risk that might 
have an indirect impact on mining, it said. 
 
Congo will be another country that will attract significant Chinese investment, particularly after 
joining Beijing’s belt and road initiative in December last year. China would also look at investing in 
Zambian mines, the research body said. FSCRIR said that Chile has attracted a considerable amount 
of investments in copper mining in recent years and will begin to pay off in the next few years. 
 
However, the South American nation faces a long-term risk of decline in average ore grades, which 
would necessitate mining a higher amount of ores. Though Chile faced unrest due to protests, it 
added that stability was expected to return to the nation in the long-term. 
 
(Source:https://www.thehindubusinessline.com/markets/commodities/global-copper-mining-output-
likely-to-increase-by-
78/article35072526.ece#:~:text=Global%20copper%20mining%20production%20is,and%20 
Industry% 20Research%20(FSCRIR).) 

INDIAN COPPER INDUSTRY OUTLOOK  

 
Indian Industrial Production was restricted by one of the world’s strictest COVID-19 lockdowns in 
Q1 FY 2020-21 and improved gradually thereafter. On a yearly basis, domestic demand reduced by 
24% to 566 KT in FY 2020-21 from 750KT in FY 2019-20. 
 
On the raw material side, copper mines production was almost flat, with only 01.% growth in copper 
concentrate production globally in CY 2020 compared to the previous year. This was on account of 
multiple issue faced by the mining industry including COVID-19 disruptions, local community 
issues in some South American countries, drop -in copper grade in some large global mines.  
 
Copper finds widespread use in a wide range of application in all major sectors namely, construction, 
electric & electronic products, industrial machinery & equipment, transportation equipment & 
consumer and general products. 
 
At present, the demand for copper minerals in the country for primary copper production is met 
through two sources i.e. copper ore mined from indigenous mines and imported concentrates. The 
indigenous mining activity among the primary copper producers is limited to only Hindustan Copper 
Limited (HCL). The other primary copper producers in the private sector import the required mineral 
in the form of concentrate. 
 
Currently, three major players dominate the Indian Copper Industry. Hindustan Copper Limited 
(HCL) in Public Sector, M/s Hindalco Industries and M/s Sterlite Industries in Private Sector. HCL 
is the only vertically integrated copper producer in the country, while M/s Hindalco Industries at 
Dahej in Gujarat and M/s Sterlite Industries in Tuticorin in Tamil Nadu (closure order issued to 
Vedanta Smelter/ refinery plant by Tamil Nadu government in May’2018) have set up port-based 
smelting and refining plants. 
 



 
 

Current year production of copper are as under:  
 
 

Company Existing 
capacity 

Cumulative Production (up to 
March, 2022) 

Cum. Actual 
Production up to 

March, 2021 Target Actual 
NALCO 4.60 4.60 4.60 4.18 
BALCO 5.70 5.80 5.80 5.68 
HINDALCO* 13.46 12.84 12.94 12.28 
VEDANTA LTD 17.50 16.81 16.78 13.72 
Total 41.26 40.05 40.12 35.86 

* From Monthly Summary Reports on Non-Ferrous Minerals & Metals from Ministry of Mines website 

 
 

GLOBAL ALUMINIUM INDUSTRY OUTLOOK 

 
It would not be an exaggeration to call copper the new oil. 
The advent of EVs and new-age batteries means the need for far more copper. According to a 
Copper Development Association report, hybrid electrical vehicles (which run on batteries and 
gasoline engines) will require 85 pounds of copper. 
In comparison, plug-in-hybrid vehicles will need 132 pounds and battery electric vehicles, which run 
only on batteries, 183 pounds of copper compared to 18-49 pounds for a petrol engine car. 
 
The India Energy Storage Alliance (IESA) projects that the Indian EV market growing at a CAGR of 
36 per cent till 2026 and the EV battery market at 30 per cent CAGR during the same period. 
Yet, India will need to import more copper, resulting in higher outgo of precious foreign exchange. 
According to the Commerce Ministry, India earned a net foreign exchange of $1.1 billion on the 
export of copper in 2017-18. However, after the shutdown of Sterlite Copper’s smelter plant in May 
2018, India has been seeing a net foreign exchange outflow of $1.2 billion on rising imports. 
Additionally, there will be a higher demand for copper in the EV ecosystem, especially in the 
charging stations. While the charger itself does not have much copper in it, the wires used to connect 
the charger to the electrical panel and the charging cables use copper. 
The electrical conductivity, easy solderability and mechanical toughness make copper wire an ideal 
choice for solar panels and solar technology. On average, solar energy systems use up to 5.5 tonnes 
of copper per MW because these wires can be used for all wiring, cabling and heat exchanger 
requirements. 
 
India’s ambitious target of generating 450 GW of renewable power — solar and wind — will require 
a lot of copper. 
 
Globally wind turbines are fast emerging as one of the most environment-friendly renewable energy 
applications. Investments in large-scale wind power projects are rising as a result. India’s total wind 
power generation capacity is expected to reach 170 GW by the end of 2022. 
The suitability of copper with its requisite flexibility, strength and durability for wind turbines to 
withstand such harsh conditions without any degradation of functionality is a well-established fact 
today. 
Additionally, smart grids, with built-in electronic hardware and automated software, are the future – 
as far as efficient energy storage is concerned. Not surprisingly, global investments in intelligent 
grids are growing at an impressive pace, with modular switchgear being produced on a scale. 
The global copper market, valued at $2,30,050 million in 2020, is expected to touch $3,25,860 
million by the end of 2027, growing at a CAGR of 5.1 per cent, according to the Global Copper 
Market Research report. 



 
 

 
Hence, long-term prospects for copper remain bullish. Moreover, JP Morgan says that efforts to 
decarbonise the economy will account for more than 40 per cent of overall demand growth next year 
in the 25-million-tonne market. 
 
Similarly, copper prices are expected to stay firm, with Bank of America predicting an average 
$9,813 per tonne in 2022 and $8,375 a tonne in 2023. Goldman Sachs predicts that copper prices 
could average $11,875 per tonne in 2022, $12,000 in 2023, $14,000 in 2024 and $15,000 in 2025. 
 
The ‘futuristic’ copper - The Hindu BusinessLine 
 

Growing Demand for Electrical and Electronics Segment 

 Copper is being used for many applications due to its properties. Electronic applications of 
copper are wires and cables, dynamos, transformers, motors, electromagnets, switches, 
communication cables, residential electrical circuits, etc. 

 Recently, the growth of electric vehicles increased the demand for copper. Foils, stators, 
rotors, shaft heads, hollow wires, and motors are used in electrical vehicles consisting of 
heavy copper. 

 According to JEITA ( Japan Electronics and Information Technology Industries Association), 
the total global production by the electronics and IT industries was expected to rise by 11% Y-
o-Y in 2021 to reach USD 3,360.2 billion. Thus, this factor is excepted to increase the demand 
for copper materials used in the electronics segment. 

 In North America, especially in the United States, the electronics industry is expected to grow 
moderately. An increase in the demand for new technological products is expected to help 
market expansion in the future. 

 
https://www.alcircle.com/specialreport/323/global-aluminium-industry-outlook-2021 
 

INDIAN ALUMINIUM INDUSTRY OUTLOOK 

 
The year 2021 experienced demand recovery for aluminium in most major markets across the world, 
with usage increased from 86.9 million tonnes in 2020 to 93.5 million tonnes. But now with the 
onset of 2022, time to look forward to what is in store this year, which is why the AlCircle team has 
come up with a new report on “Global Aluminium Industry Outlook 2022." 
 
The team has projected in the report that aluminium demand will progress in 2022 but at a slower 
rate from last year. In contrast to 7.6% growth rate in 2021, aluminium demand is estimated to 
increase by about 3.3 per cent to reach 96.6 million tonnes by the year-end. On the other hand, as 
supply is concerned, it is likely to remain tight throughout 2022, with limited capacity additions in 
China and elsewhere in the world. 
 
In the upstream sector, global bauxite output is expected to grow by about 1.6% to come in at 383 
million tonnes in 2022, supported by new projects and expansion plans in leading producing 
countries like Australia, Guinea, and Indonesia. Demand for alumina and alumina prices is expected 
to be positively influenced by the growing demand for primary aluminium in 2022. 
 
In 2022, primary aluminium demand is likely to be driven by the transport sector at 9.8 per cent, 
followed by the packaging sector at 7.2%, as mentioned in the report. (Global Aluminium Industry 
Outlook 2022 (alcircle.com)) 
 
Needless to say that the Covid-19 pandemic and the ensuing lockdowns resulted in a major 
setback for the aluminium industry across the world in the last fiscal year. India was no 



 
 

exception but to witness slow business and industry activities, both in Q1 and Q2 of 
FY2020-21. According to the market data, domestic aluminium consumption declined by 
about 15%, with downstream products import shrank by almost 19 per cent throughout the 
year. Amid this impeding market condition, it is of an utmost importance to analyse the 
future trend of the industry in order to plan for growth, expansion and investment 
accordingly. 
 
With such an objective, AlCircle has brought to you a new report on “Outlook for the 
Indian Aluminium Industry - In-depth industry analysis & forecast to 2026-27”. 
AlCircle research has estimated that aluminium usage in India is likely to grow at a CAGR 
of 6.7% over the next five years to reach 4.84 million tonnes by 2026-27. Electrical and 
electronics is expected to dominate the market by consuming around 1.69 million tonnes of 
the metal by the said year. The usage of aluminium by the transportation sector is set to 
grow at about 7.2% per annum to reach 1.37 million tonnes by 2026-27. 
 
This new report of AlCircle has not only cumulated the broad overview of the potential 
market trend in the next five years but has also evaluated the in-depth course of the industry 
vertical wise. The reported has offered strategic information to planners and decision makers 
enabling them to explore investment opportunities in the country. 
 
https://www.alcircle.com/specialreport/325/outlook-for-the-indian-aluminium-industry 
 

ABOUT RCI Industries & Technologies 

 
Head quartered in Delhi, it is among the leading manufacturers of copper products in India. The 
Company is into the trade and manufacturing of flat and round products in copper, brass, stainless 
steel and special alloys. With one plant in Himachal Pradesh at Baddi, RCI offers a wide range of 
customized products. The Company has a global customer network with a strong presence in Middle 
East and African countries. It caters to a diverse customer portfolio of traders and manufacturers.   
 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW  

 
The Company is in the business of manufacturing, trading and exporting Ferrous and Non-Ferrous 
Metal products. The Company achieved a turnover of Rs. 5968.13 lakhs in FY 2021-22. 
 
The consolidated performance of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, is as 
follows:  
Total revenue from operations at Rs. 5968.13/-lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2022, as against 
Rs. 6880.22/- Lakhs for the corresponding previous period, on account of decrease revenues from 
operational due to COVID pandemic. 
 
The Profit/(loss) after tax were Rs. (7189.89) /- lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2022, as against 
loss after tax Rs. (9043.41)/- Lakhs for the corresponding previous period. 
 
The EPS (Earning Per Share) for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 was Rs. (45.99) for a face 
value of Rs 10 per share, as against Rs. (57.76) for the corresponding previous period. 
 

RISKS AND CONCERNS  

 
The Company faces the following Risks and Concerns:  



 
 

 

Economic Risk  

 
A part of business is substantially dependent on the prevailing global economic conditions. Factors 
that may adversely affect the global economy and in turn India’s economic growth, that could affect 
the demand for copper and other non ferrous and ferrous metal products include slowdown in the 
rate of infrastructure development, inflation, changes in tax, trade, fiscal and monetary policies, 
scarcity of credit etc. However, given that our key drivers for demand are fast growing segments like 
Electrical, Transport, General Engineering and Consumer Durables combined with growth in global 
EXIM traffic and current prevailing trend of falling copper prices, we do not expect this risk to affect 
our business.   
 

Competition Risk  

 
This risk arises from more players wanting a share in the same pie. Like in most other industries, 
opportunity brings with itself competition. We face different levels of competition in each product 
segment, from domestic as well as multinational companies. However, RCI has established strong 
brand goodwill in the market and a strong foothold in a wide spectrum of non ferrous and ferrous 
products. We are one of leading copper product manufacturers and traders in India. Our wide 
network across the globe helps us generate higher volumes and negotiate competitive pricing. We 
have built a strong relationship with key industry suppliers and traders and as a result are able to 
obtain competitive commercial terms and operational advantages. We also counter this risk with the 
quality of our products, our customer-centric approach and our ability to innovate customer specific 
solutions, focusing on pricing and aggressive marketing strategy, disciplined and time bound order 
executions, coupled with prudent financial and human resources management and better control over 
costs. Thus, we do not expect to be significantly affected by this risk. 
 

Trade Risk 

  
Our business can be affected by the rise and fall in the levels of price and import of copper in the 
country.  As per a Bloomberg report, in 2017 alone, 62,000 fewer tones of copper will come to 
market than previously expected. Global copper demand may continue to grow at a moderate pace as 
China, which accounted for 45% of global demand in 2015, transitions toward an economy driven by 
domestic consumer spending rather than government infrastructure investment. Given the projected 
growth in the Indian economy and expected recovery in global trade, rising spending in the 
infrastructure and manufacturing space and increasing per capita and disposable income, it is 
estimated that demand for goods will continue to rise steadily. The Company is further reducing its 
dependence on global EXIM trade by shifting focus from trading to manufacturing. Thus, we believe 
we have adequate mitigation in place for trade risk.  
 

Regulatory Risk  

 
If we are unable to obtain required approvals and licenses in a timely manner, our business and 
operations may be adversely affected. We require certain approvals, licenses, registrations and 
permissions for operating and expanding capacities at our plants. Also, some of the new value-added 
product segments that the Company plans to enter require Government approval.  We may encounter 
delays in obtaining these requisite approvals, or may not be able to obtain such approvals at all, 
which may have an adverse effect on our revenues. However, the Government has come up with a 
number of initiatives to boost the sector. The estimated copper usage growth is expected to increase 
as the Government has put in process various initiatives such as Housing for All, Make in India and 
smart cities to name few. As all industry predictions suggest that this will be the trend in the future as 



 
 

well and given our own experience in obtaining such permissions, we do not expect this risk to affect 
us materially in the coming years.  
 

Liability Risk  

 
This risk refers to our liability arising from any damage to products, equipment, plant & machinery, 
life and third parties which may adversely affect our business. The Company attempts to mitigate 
this risk through contractual obligations and insurance policies.  
 

Execution Risk  

 

The Company has undertaken number of orders in the last year and several more are in the pipeline. 
Order execution is largely dependent upon sourcing of raw materials and timely manufacturing. Any 
delay in project implementation can impact revenue and profit for that period. Our implementation 
schedules are in line with the plans. Emergency and contingency plans are in place to prevent or 
minimize business interruptions. Therefore, we do not expect this risk to affect us materially in the 
future. Concerns like soaring copper and other metal prices, an unfavourable tax structure, 
infrastructure bottle-necks, retaining talent and unprecedented natural and man-made disasters and 
political/social turmoil which may affect our business, remain. However, these are threats faced by 
the entire industry. With superior methodologies and improved processes and systems, the Company 
is well positioned to lead a high growth path.  
 

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS 

COPPER 

Strength Weakness Opportunities Threat 

 A balanced portfolio of 
revenue streams to tide 
hrough volatile market 

 Secured concentrate supply via long 
term contracts with miners 

 Increased focused on VAP 

 Import 
dependence for 
Copper concentrate 
supplies 

 Immense 
headroom for growth 
due to lower 
consumption vs global 
average 

 Mine 
disruptions  
Duties & FTAs – 
trade policies 

 

INDIA ALUMINIUM 

Strength Weakness Opportunities Threat 
 Integrated business 
model generating healthy cash 
flows  
 The dominant player in 
India across upstream and 
downstream 
 Utkal - among the 
world’s most economical and 
efficient Alumina producers; 
capacity expansion of 500 Kt in 
progress and Utkal capacity 
to reach 2.0 Mt  
 Increased focused on 

 Import 
dependence for 
Copper concentrate 
supplies 

 Immense 
headroom for growth 
due to lower 
consumption vs global 
average 

 Mine disruptions  
Duties & FTAs – trade 
policies 



 
 

Value Added Products (VAP) to 
be further de-linked to the global 
aluminium prices. 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY  

 
The Companies Act, 2013 re-emphasizes the need for an effective Internal Financial Control system 
in the Company. The system should be designed and operated effectively. Rule 8(5)(viii) of 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires the information regarding adequacy of Internal 
Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements to be disclosed in the Board`s report. To 
ensure effective Internal Financial Controls the Company has laid down the following measures:     
➢ The Company has a comprehensive risk management framework     

➢ RCI Industries & Technologies Limited has in place a well-defined Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil 
Mechanism 

➢ RCI Industries and Technologies Limited has a system of Internal Business Reviews 

All departmental heads discuss their business issues and future plans in monthly review meetings. 
They review their achievements in quarterly review meetings. Specialized issues like investments, 
property, FOREX are discussed in their respective Internal Committee meetings. The Company has a 
proper and adequate internal control system to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected 
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and those transactions are authorized, recorded and 
reported correctly. The internal control is exercised through documented policies, guidelines and 
procedures. It is supplemented by an extensive program of internal audits conducted by in house 
trained personnel.   
 
The audit observations and corrective action taken thereon are periodically reviewed by the audit 
committee to ensure effectiveness of the internal control system.  The internal control is designed to 
ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial statements and other 
data, and for maintaining accountability of persons.    
 

HUMAN RESOURCES  

 
The Company’s HR philosophy is to establish and build a high performing organization, where each 
individual is motivated to perform to the fullest capacity to contribute to developing and achieving 
individual excellence and departmental objectives and continuously improve performance to realize 
the full potential of our personnel. 
As on March 31, 2022, the Company had a workforce of 119 people on rolls.  
 

OUTLOOK  

The Company constantly endeavors to improve the quality of its products to secure an increased 
number of orders at competitive rates.  On account of bulk orders and bargain power, the Company 
is able to quote better rates and maintain high quality of products. However, copper industry needs 
great support from the government as it is going through a difficult phase due to slow down in global 
market and increasing competition from imports. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India. Please refer Directors’ Report in 
this respect. 
 



 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors  
For RCI Industries & Technologies Limited 
 
Sd/-  
 
Mr. Rajeev Gupta  
Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN 00503196  
Date: 05.07.2022 
 
 
  



 
 

FORM AOC-1 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-Section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries or Associate 
Companies or Joint Ventures as on March 31, 2022 

 

 
Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

 
Notes:  
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - NA 
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year – NA 
 

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures 
 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate 
Companies 

 

Name of Associates 
Ace Matrix 

Solutions Private 
Limited 

Metalrod Private 
Limited 

Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 31-Mar-2021* 31-Mar-2021* 

Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company 
on the year end 

    

·       Number 30110 316380 
·       Amount of Investment in Associates  177.94  639.09 
·       Extend of Holding % 22% 34.27% 

Description of how there is significant influence Due to the percentage of Share Capital 

Name of Subsidiary RCI World Trade Link 
DMCC 

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from 
the holding company’s reporting period 

Jan’2021 to Dec’ 2021 

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on March 31, 2022, in 
case of Foreign Subsidiaries 

United Arab Emirates 
Dirham (AED) 

1AED = 20.66632 INR 
Share capital 4,43,75,000  
Reserves & surplus  (3,83,32,365) 
Total assets 60,42,635  
Total Liabilities - 
Investments - 
Turnover - 
Profit before taxation 3,62,33,410 
Provision for taxation 0 
Profit after taxation 3,62,33,410 
Proposed Dividend NIL 
% of shareholding 100% 



 
 

Reason why the associate is not consolidated 

Investment in shares of associates was 
made as stock in trade and the intention of 
such investment was to dispose of the 
same in near future. Accordingly 
Applicable Indian Accounting Standards 
exempts the consolidation of such 
associates. 

Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest 
audited Balance Sheet 74,55,577.36/- 6,89,80,047.61/- 
Profit / Loss for the year 1,82,258 -2,16,28,116 

i. Considered in Consolidation NA NA 

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation NA NA 

 
Notes: 
*Financials as on March 31, 2022 of Associate Companies have not been finalised yet, hence figures 
of March 31, 2021 of Associate Companies have been taken. 
1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations - NA 
2. Names of associates/joint ventures which have been liquidated/sold during the year – NA 
 
 

For KRA & Co.  
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No. 020266N 
  
Sd/- 
 

For & on behalf of Board of Directors 
 
 
 
        Sd/-                              Sd/-                                Sd/- 
 

Rajat Goyal 
Partner                                                           
M. No. 503150       
 
 
Place: New Delhi                                                                                             
Date: 05.07.2022                                         

Rajeev Gupta     
Managing Director  
DIN: 00503196                      

Mukesh Tyagi 
Director 
DIN: 08698810       

Priya Rastogi 
Company 
Secretary 
M. No.: A 
A18636 
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